1

1

2
3
4

5
6

7

8
9

10
11

MIN UTE S
LAND USE COMMITTEE

12

Council of the County of Maui

13

Council Chamber

14

March 2, 2005

15

16
17
18

19

20
21
22
23

24
25

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808) 524-2090

INC.

LU 3/2/05

2

1

CONVENE:

3:31 p.m.

2

PRESENT:

Councilmember
Councilmember
Councilmember
Councilmember
Councilmember
Councilmember
Councilmember
Councilmember

EXCUSED:

Councilmember G. Riki Hokama, Member

STAFF:

8

Tammy M. Frias, Committee Secretary
Carla M. Nakata, Legislative Attorney

9

Scott Jensen, Legislative Analyst

3
4

5

Robert Carroll, Chair
Joseph Pontanilla, Vice-Chair
Michelle Anderson, Member
Jo Anne Johnson, Member
Dain P. Kane, Member
Danny A. Mateo, Member
Michael J. Molina, Member
Charmaine Tavares, Member

6
7

10

ADMIN. :

Michael W. Foley, Director,
Department of Planning
Joseph Alueta, Planner, Department of Planning
Milton Arakawa, Director, Department of
Public Works and Environmental
Management
Alice L. Lee, Director, Department of Housing
and Human Concerns
George Fontaine, Captain, Department of Police
James A. Giroux, Deputy Corporation Counsel,
Department of the Corporation Counsel

OTHERS:

Item No.3:

11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19

Scott Nunokawa, Manager,
Waikapu 28 Investment, LLC
Haunani Lemn, Waikapu 28
Investment, LLC
Karlynn Kawahara, Planner,
Munekiyo & Hiraga, Inc.
Phillip Rowell, Traffic Consultant,
Phillip Rowell & Associates

20
21
Others:
22

23

PRESS:

Mike Pullman
Anthony Serna
Michele McLean
David Goode

Akaku--Maui County Community Television, Inc.

24
25

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808) 524-2090

INC.

LU 3/2/05

1

2

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

(Gavel).

This Land Use Committee meeting

of March 2nd, 2005 is now in session.
Good afternoon, Members.

3

And we have with us

4

Vice Chair Joseph Pontanilla, Members Tavares,

5

Molina, Mateo, Kane, Johnson, and Anderson.

6

Hokama is excused.

7

ITEM NO.3:

8
9

Chair

COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT AND CHANGE IN ZONING
FOR WAIOLANI MAUKA RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION
(WAIKAPU) (C.C. No. 04-295)

CHAIR CARROLL:

This morning, Members, we have one item on

10

our agenda, LU-3, Community Plan Amendment and

11

Change in Zoning for Waiolani Mauka Residential

12

Subdivision in Waikapu.

13

Investment, LLC, proposed a development of a

14

single-family residence subdivision consisting of --

15

excuse me, consisting of up to 108 lots on

16

approximately 28.718-acre parcel located at Waikapu,

17

Wailuku, Maui, TMK No.

18

applicant is seeking two land use approvals from the

19

Council.

The applicant, Waikapu 28

(2)3-5-004:025.

The

20

First, the applicant is requesting an

21

amendment to the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan and

22

land use map from Public/Quasi-Public to

23

Single-Family for a two-acre portion of a 28.7-acre

24

parcel.

25

currently designated on the Community Plan as

That two-acre portion of the parcel is
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1

intended for use as a Waikapu Fire Station.

2

According to the application, the remainder of the

3

parcel is already designated Single-Family on the

4

Community Plan.

5

The Chair would note that the members have in

6

their binders as Exhibit 7 of County Communication

7

No.

8

from the Fire Chief to the applicant that states,

9

"After additional review and consideration of your

10

offer for a two-acre parcel for a fire station, we

11

are declining your offer at this time.

12

would like to have a piece of property further south

13

of your project."

The Chief will not be with us at

14

the meeting today.

I felt that that statement was

15

enough.

16

04-295 correspondence dated November 12th, 2003

Ideally we

Second, the applicant is requesting

17

conditional change in zoning for the entire 2.

18

28.7-acre parcel from Agricultural District to R-2

19

Residential District.

20

members today for the community plan amendment and

21

the change in zoning have been revised and

22

transmitted by correspondence dated today from the

23

Department of the Corporation Counsel.

24

requests these revisions by correspondence dated

25

February 28th, 2005, please refer to the revised

The two proposed bills before
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1

proposed bills and the accompanying revised land use

2

map for purposes of discussion today.

3

Due to the size of the parcel, the request

4

for a district boundary amendment was directed to

5

the State Land Use Commission.

6

their binders a transmittal from the Chair dated

7

January 25th, 2005, attaching the decision and order

8

by Land Use Commission dated December 14th, 2004

9

reclassifying the parcel to the State Land Use Urban

Members have in

10

District.

That order, Members, was adopted

11

subsequently to the Department of Planning's

12

transmittal to the Maui Planning Commission's

13

recommendations.

14

classification is now Urban.

So please note the State Land Use

15

The Chair would also like to draw the

16

member's attention to two transmittals dated

17

yesterday.

18

provided the following information:

19

Planning Department recommendation report to the

20

Maui Planning Commission August lOth, 2004 meeting,

21

and second, an exchange of correspondence between

22

the applicant and the State Department of

23

Transportation in August 2004 documenting that the

24

State DOT is satisfied that issues have been

25

resolved through the imposition of three conditions.

Through those transmittals the Chair
First, the Maui
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6

As noted on a transmittal from the Chair,

2

these conditions have been incorporated into

3

Conditions No.5, 6, and 7 in the State Land Use

4

Commission's decision of order amending the State

5

Land Use district classification.

6

had an opportunity earlier this afternoon to view

7

the subsequent property inspection.

8

like to thank all the members who attended the site

9

inspection for making themselves available on an

10

Committee members

Chair would

off-site meeting.

11

With us today we have our Planning Director,

12

our Planner, Joseph Alueta, representative from the

13

Department of Public Works and Environmental

14

Management here, Captain George Fontaine is with us

15

also from our site inspection, and we also have

16

Alice Lee of the Housing and Human Concerns.

17

Chair would like to note that he requested a

18

representative from the State Department of

19

Transportation to attend today's meetingi however,

20

the State DOT communicated with the Committee Staff

21

yesterday and informed Staff that it viewed the

22

DOT-related issues have been resolved.

23

DOT forwarded a correspondence transmitted to the

24

members under cover dated March 1st, 2005 to

25

evidence the agreement that has been reached.
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1

to staffing time and cost considerations on their

2

end and in light of the position issues have been

3

resolved, we will not have a representative

4

available from the State DOT today.

5

On behalf of the applicant, Waikapu 28

6

Investment, LLC, we have with us this afternoon

7

Scott Nunokawa, Manager, Waikapu 28 Investment, LLC,

8

and Haunani Lemn.

9

Traffic Engineer, and Karlynn Kawahara, Planner.

We also have Phillip Rowell,
In

10

addition, the applicant informs us that Warren

11

Unemori of Unemori Engineering is also available on

12

an on-call basis.
Members, we will first hear from the

13
14

applicant who is going to give us a short

15

presentation.

16

Note:

PowerPoint presentation.

17

MS. LEMN:

Thank you, Chairperson.

I want to begin by

18

thanking all the members and the Chair person and

19

Staff for allowing us to be heard today.

20

know that this was a cooperative effort on your part

21

to make us available for this hearing today, and

22

would really like to show our appreciation for that.

23

We really

Now, beginning with the presentation, of

24

course it's Waiolani Mauka, and at the site we did

25

go over its location, the lots that we planned to
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1

have there, which is 103 to 108, plus or minus lots.

2

The difference in the lot count really has to do

3

with whether or not the park continues to be viable

4

as far as the Parks Department's perspective.

5

We're planning to do a development that is

6

lot only, and it would range from 7,500 square feet

7

at this point in preliminary drawings to about

8

12,000 square feet.

9

visit, what we're asking for today is -- what we're

As you well now from the site

10

asking for today is for a change in community plan

11

amendment for the two acres noted as

12

Public/Quasi-Public on the northwest corner of the

13

property and to change that to Single-Family use.

14

As we noted on the parcel, and as Joe Alueta,

15

Planner, noted at the parcel, the reason for this is

16

because we've been communicated with by the Fire

17

Department that they no longer see this as a viable

18

site for their next fire station and that they're

19

looking for something further south, assuming the

20

Maalaea area.

21

zoning on the entire parcel from Agriculture to R-2

22

Residential District.

23

We are also looking to change the

This is a regional location map, and given

24

that you all have physically gone to the site, I

25

have a pretty good idea that you know where this is.
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1

It 1 s about one and a half miles south -- or -- of

2

Wailuku Town and adjacent to the Waiolani

3

subdivision and also Waiolani Elua, which is noted

4

just by arrow there.

5

that parcel has been developed at this point with

6

R-2 Residential District housing.

7

lot-only project that Scott and I facilitated in

8

getting on the ground.

9

Waiolani Pikake subdivision that there was a site

It 1 s shown as blank here, but

That was also a

Above it is the proposed

10

visit for that as well, and you can see the Spencer

11

201G affordable housing project across from the site

12

from Honoapiilani Highway.

13

This is an aerial photo,

14

have a better concept of where it is.

15

in the foreground Wailuku Heights, and as you move

16

towards the top of the aerial you see the site --

17

you 1 re actually moving towards the central plains,

18

Kahului central plains, in that direction.

19

also see surrounding it the future Spencer

20

single-family project.

21

it the community plan single-family area that is

22

about 20 acres, and to the right of it, Waiolani and

23

Waiolani Elua, as well as the proposed Waiolani

24

Pikake projects.

25

just so that you can
You can see

You can

You can see to the left of

This is another aerial photo, just in closer
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1

proximity.

2

Maalaea Harbor to the top of the photo.

3

also see -- it's a very general location of that two

4

acres that was proposed for the fire station in

5

that -- the foreground.

6

community plan map for this area, it will give you a

7

better concept of where that Public/Quasi-Public

8

parcel is.

9
10

MR. NUNOKAWA:
MS. LEMN:

You can see the Waiolani area and
You can

If you look at the

I want that thing off.

Sorry.

And you can also see the continuation of the

11

single-family community plan region.

This is a very

12

preliminary drawing of the subdivision that we

13

proposed to do on the project, and I do want to note

14

it's very preliminary.

15

some kind of project, you're going to start off by

16

saying, okay, what looks right in this area?

17

this is what we laid out -- had Unemori Engineering

18

layout for us.

19

Ditch the proposed two-acre park site, and the

20

reason for that is if you looked at the site visit

21

you'll note that in that general area it's the most

22

level section of the subdivision.

Whenever you're trying to do

And so

In it you can see above the Waihee

23

Also, there's that tail that creeps out to

24

the left that opens up into the Waiolani Elua and

25

waiolani subdivisions.

At the top you'll see what's
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1

called a 20-foot wide emergency vehicular access.

2

But what we really see that as is really a

3

pedestrian walkway area so that people can walk from

4

Waiolani and Waiolani Elua across through the park

5

site! go mauka! and through that vehicular access

6

utility corridor and continue their loop onto Waiko

7

Road! which is pretty much the traditional walkway

8

area that people are using right now.

9

You can also see the perimeter where the

10

residential lots abut what would be called the Vida!

11

Pinto! Yamaoka properties.

12

resident! and on the site visit Scott noted that

13

this is an area that we're looking to provide

14

fencing for! as well as a park site! and as it loops

15

around to the Waiolani subdivision.

These are the old-time

One of the things that Scott's noting to me

16
17

as not to forget is that we're also looking in terms

18

of revisions to deal with the traffic calming of

19

this subdivision.

20

always felt was very important.

21

Waiolani Elua! that was something that we focused

22

on.

23

approval! once the traffic calming ordinance was

24

passed! we subjected ourselves once again to

25

subdivision approval so that we could get some

It's one of the things that we've
When we did

Even though we already had subdivision
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12

traffic calming built into the subdivision.
If you look at this subdivision, you'll note

3

that there's pretty much a straight run going

4

mauka-makai and then looping out here to Pilikana

5

Street, which is the entrance road into Waiolani

6

subdivision.

7

in trying to look at what to do about that straight

8

run in order to reduce traffic, and we have begun

9

doing some preliminary revisions of that road to

This has been one of our focal points

10

allow some curvature at the area that you see open

11

by the park site and have started looking at various

12

traffic calming features.

13

pedestrian walkway.

14

with us about a roundabout.

15

on that area and see what will make the most sense

16

to calm the traffic in that specific area there.

17

As far as proposed infrastructural

One is a raised

There's been some discussion
We really want to focus

18

improvements, there's a standard clearing and

19

grubbing and grading, installation of underground

20

water ways, construction of internal roadways,

21

street landscaping, but I think for your purposes

22

what you're really interested in is some of the

23

things that are not typically standard.

24

typically standard is the fact that as part of our

25

review -- traffic review of the subdivision, it
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1

became apparent that a traffic warrant was going to

2

be generated for a traffic signal at the

3

intersection of Pilikana and Honoapiilani Highway.

4

And so as part of our State Land Use

5

Commission requirements, it notes that a traffic

6

signal will have to be up and running at that

7

intersection before this project can begin to be

8

open for business.

9

we understand that we are going to be part of the

So that's the first one, is that

10

coordination and participation in that traffic

11

signal.

12

Second is participation in the construction

13

of a 1.5 million gallon per day water storage tank,

14

and that is something that Hawaii Land & Farming and

15

Spencer Projects is also involved in to meet their

16

water storage demands.

17

located where the current tank is in Wailuku

18

Heights.

19

That storage tank would be

And third is participation in the

20

construction of detention basin and expansion of the

21

reservoir.

22

of pointed you down in the direction of where the

23

reservoir is located, and this is the reservoir

24

we're speaking of right now.

25

schedule -- and as you well know, there's a lot of

When we had our site visit, Scott kind

As far as project
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1

variables involved in here, but of course we always

2

try to plan for where we're going to be.

3

been in the entitlement stage since February of

4

2003.

5

process for quite some time with our Environmental

6

Assessment and our State Land Use Commission

7

requirements.

8
9

So we have

So we have been going through the entitlement

We're hoping -- and I know that this is real
hopeful -- is that we'll get a positive response

10

here and we'll be able to get our land entitlement

11

by sometime in Mayor June, and that will allow us

12

to progress with civil drawing approvals, hoping to

13

get that done by October, if that's the case, and

14

then moving to the construction bid process,

15

financing of site work, and the bonded final

16

subdivision approval by December so that we can make

17

these lots available to buyers.

18

We had six conditions placed upon us as part

19

of the Planning Commission recommendations, and

20

that's really for you folks to review and determine

21

if you want to continue with those recommendations.

22

The first was with regard to the park, that pending

23

approval and acceptance by the County of Maui a

24

two-acre park be dedicated to the County of Maui.

25

And just as a note about the park situation,
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1

our requirements by ordinance is for a one-acre

2

park.

3

Department that we want to voluntarily give two

4

acres in order to make it more viable for it to

5

become a public park.

6

Ms. Pellegrino noted that the community feels very

7

strongly about that, and if you were here as part of

8

the Waiolani Elua review, that was probably the most

9

heated issue that ever came up for that subdivision,

We have voluntarily put forward to the Parks

I know at the site visit

10

is what about a park site.

11

facilitate that in the subdivision.

12

So we're trying to

Number two is the traffic signal, which we've

13

already discussed.

14

something we're going to continue to work with the

15

State Department of Civil Defense regarding whether

16

or not we should be putting up a civil defense siren

17

in that area or if there is some place more

18

appropriate given all the development in the area

19

that's coming up right now.

20

Three is a siren, and this is

Four is affordable housing agreement, which

21

I'm sure is a big red flag.

People want to know

22

what was said at the Planning Commission.

23

the case that the applicant shall enter in an

24

affordable housing agreement to the satisfaction of

25

the Department of Housing and Human Concerns, and we
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1

have begun those discussions as well.

2

course it's very preliminary, given that we don't

3

have any approvals.

4

Although, of

Fifth was the affordable housing location,

5

and that is that it would be in the area.

And

6

Number 6, was the DOE requirement.

7

requirement that's placed on the subdivision here in

8

the Planning Commission recommendations is

9

duplicated in the State Land Use Commission

The DOE

10

conditions as well.

11

Planning Commission we had not finished our review

12

at the State Land Use Commission, and so I'm sure to

13

be thorough the Planning Commission thought that

14

they should make sure it's there somewhere.

15

it as part of our State Land Use Commission

16

requirements and we're hoping that this can be a

17

condition that the Council sees fit not to include

18

as part of the County's conditions so that we can

19

continue our discussions with the State purely at

20

the State level, given that it is a State function.

21

I note that when we went to the

We have

Here are the reports that we prepared.

We

22

did an environmental assessment, which Munekiyo &

23

Hiraga, Inc. helped us with, an archeological

24

inventory survey done by Archeological Services

25

Hawaii, LLC, a traffic impact analysis report by
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1

Phillip Rowell & Associates -- and it's noted that

2

he is here today to answer any questions that you

3

might have -- a preliminary engineering report by

4

Warren S. Unemori Engineering, Inc., he's on call,

5

and a Central Maui real property survey, which Scott

6

did himself, because there is no entity that really

7

keeps track of that kind of data.

8
9

In summary, we really think that this is a
good project.

We've had such good feedback and such

10

good support from the community so far, and even to

11

date we continue to get calls.

12

was trying to run out the door to the site visit of

13

somebody who wanted to be placed on our interested

14

buyer's list.

15

product that the community really wants.

16

I got a call while I

So we really feel that this is a

I note that the community plan identifies

17

this area -- not just our project but the

18

surrounding area for single-family use and

19

identifies a continued expansion next to our project

20

of the single-family use.

21

contiguous to existing infrastructure and existing

22

single-family residences.

23

central urban core area and within short distance

24

from the employment centers of Kahului and Wailuku.

25

I was just reading that SMS socioeconomic forecast

This project is

It is located within the
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1

for 2002, and it noted that in the Wailuku-Kahului

2

area, 44 percent of the civilian jobs of Maui is

3

located in that core area.

4

This project serves to provide much needed

5

housing opportunities for the under served gap group

6

families of the community.

7

talk about gap group,

8

those families who really cannot afford what is

9

called market today.

And when Scott and I

we're really talking about

And we keep

almost every

10

other week keep getting an update on the increase in

11

the median family price range for housing.

12

there's a large group who can't afford that housing.

13

At the same time, they're not in what we'd call the

14

low to low-moderate or affordable housing group, and

15

so they can't take advantage of some of the benefits

16

there.

17

group.

18

So

So we're really trying to address that

That's pretty much our five-minute

19

presentation.

20

we're available for questions.

21

slides if there's a need to answer questions with

22

regards to other things, but we are making ourselves

23

available at this point.

24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:

I hope that was five minutes.

Thank you.

Department.

And

We have further

Thank you.

I'd now like to call on the

Mr. Alueta.
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MR. ALUETA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The applicant, once

2

again, did an excellent job of covering the project

3

as well as covering the conditions.

4

transmittal letter dated December 2nd, 2004.

5

also sent a corrected letter dated December 9th,

6

2004, which corrected two of the conditions as far

7

as the language.

8

approval and acceptance of the County of Maui

9

two-acre park be dedicated to the County of Maui

We did send a
We

That was on one, the pending

10

concurrently with final subdivision approval.

I did

11

hear the applicant talk about that.

We would like

12

to have more clarification on that.

When she said

13

the viability of it, so I'm not sure if Parks don't

14

want it or if there's some trouble, what happens

15

then.

16

to that.

That would be our only question with regards

17

We did -- also Number 3 of the conditions was

18

modified in the December 9th letter, which indicated

19

that the applicant shall install your omnidirectional

20

siren, if it was found necessary, and that would be

21

determined by Department of Defense -- Civil Defense.

22

For the record, we do note that the finding of facts

23

and conclusions of law and decision order from the

24

State Land Use Commission for the district boundary

25

amendment was done and it was on -- was ordered on
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1

the 14th of December 2004[ and it was per their

2

motion on October 21st[ 2004.

3

once the D&O did come out, they did incorporate the

4

condition with regards to the school impact fees.

And at that timet

5

At this time I guess I will pass -- or Mike

6

will -- we did have -- as we discussed at the site

7

visit about the regional -- potential regional

8

traffic improvements or how we envisioned the

9

traffic circulation within the Waikapu areal and I

10

guess this relates mostly to this project but also

11

the Waiolani Pikake project and also surrounding

12

projects.

13

we -- we don't stick our heads in the sand and just

14

pretend that nothing's going on around these other

15

projects.

16

we're trying to make the connection and connect the

17

dots to improve the traffic circulation within the

18

region as best we can, and the plan is only as good

19

as the plan -- as you implement the plan.

20

we hope to get all of these projects together and be

21

able to make the connection so it improves traffic

22

circulation and resolve all of the issues and

23

concerns that the neighbors have as well as serving

24

the greater community as a whole.

25

I have.

Planning -- I meant as Mike had said[

We recognize there's other projects and

Sometimes

That's as far as
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MR. FOLEY:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I'd just like to point

2

out a few specific items on this drawing.

This is

3

a -- this is a very rough sketch that we prepared

4

in -- at the State Land Use Commission meeting when

5

the issue came up regarding the mUltiple traffic

6

signals on Honoapiilani Highway.

7

purposes of this map was to show the DOT the plan

8

for the extension of Waiale Road, because they were

9

talking about widening Honoapiilani Highway through

And one of the

10

Waikapu and wailuku and we told them that that was

11

not in conformance with the community plan for a

12

number of different reasons, including historic

13

preservation.

14

circulation for this area.

15

But we wanted to show the overall

And this is an incomplete map.

There are a

16

lot of road connections that are not shown on here,

17

and there's a lot of development that has occurred

18

that is not shown on here, but it does show the

19

Honoapiilani Highway going through Waikapu into

20

wailuku.

21

which is being built by Spencer from Waiko Road over

22

to Kuikahi Drive, and it shows Waiale from Kuikahi

23

Drive all the way over to Main Street.

24

shows how important it would be to have the Old

25

Waikapu Road running from Waiko Road over to Kuikahi

It does show the Waiale extension, most of
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1

as a parallel road above Honoapiilani{ especially

2

since we anticipate a lot of housing between Waikapu

3

and Wailuku heights{ none of which is shown yet.

4

In terms of the other direction, we -- we've

5

got Waiko Road running north-south.

We've got

6

Kuikahi Road running north-south{ and we've got Main

7

Street running north-south.

8

circulation pattern below Waiale{ but it does

9

include some of the major roads in Maui Lani.

And I won't go into the

I

10

added on this the two existing traffic signals with

11

double circles and two new traffic signals that are

12

about to be installed by DOT with the red circles.

13

Those are the two.

14

discussed at Pilikana, we -- we argued against that.

15

We tried get the DOT to move that signal down to

16

where you see the P in Honoapiilani.

17

unsuccessful in that bid{ but we thought that was a

18

better location for a signal sometime in the future{

19

but they -- they would have had more trouble

20

extracting the money from Mr. Nunokawa at that

21

location, so we're going to have two signals perhaps

22

too close together{ hopefully very well coordinated.

23

And it also shows in red the road up into the

At the time the one was being

We were

24

two subdivisions that we reviewed in the site visit

25

today.

Nunokawa's subdivision{ Waiolani Mauka is on
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1

the right of the solid red line and then the other

2

project is -- I showed the dashed red line going

3

through that site up to Old Waikapu Road.

4

you this only to indicate that we have taken a

5

serious look at the circulation in this area.

6

have already been some mistakes made in this -- in

7

this area with not connecting roads, and we need to

8

prevent that from continuing, because it's really

9

important to give people alternative ways to get in

10

and out of these developmentsi otherwise, we have a

11

really high concentration of congestion at too

12

limited a number of access points.

13

So I show

There

The Fire Department is very much in agreement

14

with us that they need to have multiple

15

opportunities to get to various different areas and

16

they're extremely negative about -- about

17

cul-de-sacs and about dead ends and they are really

18

encouraging applicants to have connections of these

19

streets so that they can have more easy access.

20

that -- if there are any questions, I'll attempt to

21

answer them.

22

next time you see it it will have more yellow and

23

red on it.

24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:
testimony.

And

I wish this was more complete, but the

Thank you.

We're now going to have public

You have three minutes to speak and one
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minute to conclude.

2
3

Ms. Nakata, we have anybody signed up?
MS. NAKATA:

Mr. Chair, we have two members of the public

4

signed up to testify.

5

be followed by Anthony Serna.

6
7

CHAIR CARROLL:

And please give your name at the podium,

and if you represent anyone.
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

8
9

The first is Mike Pullman, to

MR. PULLMAN:

My name is Mike Pullman.

I represent

10

myself, my family.

We have lived in the area that's

11

in question, the Waiolani area, for the last four

12

years.

13

that gap area where we cannot afford a lot of the

14

housing that's out there right now, and what Scott

15

and his wife are proposing in this area is something

16

that we will be able to afford.

17

the process or watching the process of what they've

18

been doing in developing that one area over the last

19

couple of years and seeing the houses go up, as a

20

person living in the area, I thought that one did a

21

very good job.

22

and watching them being involved in the community,

23

it shows a lot about what they're trying to do.

24

It's not just about -- talking to Scott, it's not

25

about making the money.

And we're one of those people that fall in

And going through

Their concern for the neighborhood

It's about doing something
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for the community, providing some good housing, and

2

in a safe environment, and they've put a lot of

3

thought into this.

4

represents that.

Obviously the PowerPoint

And I don't have a lot to say other than the

5

6

fact that I'm just one person out of many that are

7

in my position where we make an okay living but we

8

still don't qualify for a 500 or a $600,000 house.

9

You have to make, you know, $100,000 to be able to

10

afford $3,000 a month payment.

11

going up, it's not going to get any better.

12

hope you consider this, which obviously you are, and

13

hope it goes through quickly.

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

15

testifier?

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thank you very much,

Just out of curiosity, do you own,

then, in the current subdivision?
MR. PULLMAN:

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

Member Johnson.

Sure.

21

24

Any questions for the

Mr. Pullman, for coming today.
MR. PULLMAN:

23

Hi.

So I

Thank you.

One moment, please.

18

20

And as things keep

No.

I'm a renter.
So you rent, and then would you

mind telling me how large your family is?
MR. PULLMAN:

It's four people, myself and my wife and two

children.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, and how big is the unit that

you're currently in in terms of square feet?
MR. PULLMAN:

1,500 square feet, and we're currently

4

just for your information, we're paying about $2,000

5

a month in rent, and that's a fairly good deal right

6

now.

7

garbage too, but that's where I think, you know,

8

looking and talking to our mortgage broker and kind

9

of discussing what would be in affordable, this is

In fact, that includes the water, sewer, and

10

in our range, it looks like.

11

is available, we'll be able to have enough down and

12

be able to get into it.

13
14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

MR. PULLMAN:

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

18

Okay, and both you and your wife

work?

15

17

And by the time this

No, just my wife -- just myself works.
Okay, and then do you mind sharing

what your occupation is?
MR. PULLMAN:

Sure.

I actually run a building maintenance

19

company.

I have a hundred employees.

20

large company that's on the mainland.

21

another thing, there's about three or four of my

22

employees that are also involved in trying to get

23

into this property, and most of them make less than

24

I do and both their members in their family work, so

25

it's very difficult to find anything.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, and you've been at that

2

location where you're renting, how long have you

3

been there?

4

MR. PULLMAN:

5

years.

6
7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

MR. PULLMAN:

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

You're welcome.
Any further questions?

Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

follow up.

lS

offered at?

17

MR. PULLMAN:

Hearing none.

Oh, excuse me.

11

16

Four years, okay, thank you very

much.

8

10

In that community we've lived there four

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Anderson.
Thank you.

I'd just like to

What price range are these houses being

Well, right now they haven't determined that

necessarily, but they've kind of given us a range.

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

MR. PULLMAN:

And what is that?

I think they were talking -- again,

I don't

20

want to say for sure because I think it was

21

somewhere between 500 to 600,000,

22

sort of a guess.

23

their building costs and that, so it's really kind

24

of a hard thing for them to say to us, and it's

25

really all a guess at this point.

I think that was

Again, it's all determined upon
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

that you can afford?

3

MR. PULLMAN:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

6
7

But you said that that's a range

Yes.
And do you know what the monthly

payments would be approximately?
MR. PULLMAN:

Well, if I can come up with $50,000 down, my

payment will be right around $2,600 a month.

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

MR. PULLMAN:

Okay, thank you very much.

Uh - huh.

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

11

MS. NAKATA:

12

MR. SERNA:

Any further questions?

None, thank you.

The next testifier is Anthony Serna.
Hello.

My name is Anthony Serna.

I just

13

wanted to support this project.

14

Mr. and Ms. Nunokawa have the integrity and the

15

knowledge, experience to do this project and I'm

16

just behind them 100 percent.

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

18

MR. SERNA:

19

CHAIR CARROLL:

20

Thank you.

Thank you.
Any questions for the testifier?

Ms. Johnson.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

22

questions.

I'm going to ask you similar

You know, you live in the area --

23

MR. SERNA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

I believe that

No, I don't 1 i ve in the area.
of this project?

what is your current occupation?

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

Okay, and

LU 3/2/05

29

1

MR. SERNA:

I'm a gardener.

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

3

too.

4

MR. SERNA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

MR. SERNA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

MR. SERNA:

9

Yes, I do.

home so I can move into their subdivision.

11

currently?

12

MR. SERNA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And where is your residence

In North Kihei, okay.

And so you

would be intending to sell that home, then?
MR. SERNA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

MR. SERNA:

Yes.
Okay.

All right.

Thank you.

Thank you .
.

18

21

Okay.

It's in North Kihei.

15

20

You own a home.

But I'm trying to get my daughter to buy that

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

And you're renting currently?

I own a home right now.

10

14

Okay, so -- and you have a family

CHAIR CARROLL:

.

. END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .

Any further questions?

Hearing none,

thank you.
MS. NAKATA:

Mr. Chair, no one else has signed up to

22

testify.

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

Is there anyone in the audience that

24

wishes to give testimony on this agenda item at this

25

time?

Seeing none.

If there's no objection, the
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Chair will close public testimony.

2

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

No objections.
Public testimony is now closed.

Members, before I open up the questions to

4

5

the applicant and the Department, we have with us in

6

the audience Ms. Lee, and because affordable housing

7

is very much on everyone's mind, Maui County

8

affordable housing policy referred to in Exhibit 6

9

is not attached, not indicated in the application

10

what is being recommended by the Department of

11

Housing and Human Concerns with respect to

12

affordable housing.

13

come down and give the Department's recommendations

14

in this regard.

15

MS. LEE:

And I'd like to have Ms. Lee

Ms. Lee.

Good afternoon, Chair and Members.

The

16

policy -- so-called policy is something that we've

17

attached and given to you in the past, and our

18

standard recommendation for this type of project is

19

10 percent.

20

affordable to those earning 120 percent of median

21

income.

22

recommendation.

23
24

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

10 percent of the lots would be

So that would be the standard

Any questions for Ms. Lee?

Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

The median income
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you're looking at is 120 and below?

2

MS. LEE:

Ye s .

3

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

We just had one testifier testify

4

in regards to the gap areal and I'm kind of more

5

interested in the 121 percent to 140 percent.

6

know [ we're kind of forgetting that particular gap

7

group in regards to affordable housing here on Maui.

8

Have you ever considered affordable housing for that

9

particular gap group?

You

And to mel this is where the

10

policemen or the teachers[ the nurses[ and if

11

they're married would qualify.

12

leaving out a particular gap group that we want to

13

help in creating affordable housing.

14

adjustment to that?

15

CHAIR CARROLL:

16

MS. LEE:

So we're kind of

Can we make an

Ms. Lee.

Council Member [ it's going to be the Council's

17

callI but here we're talking about anywhere from ten

18

to eleven house lots that we are recommending be

19

priced for those earning 120 percent of median

20

income [ which would roughly be around $150[000 per

21

lot.

22

required[ then I would probably recommend to you a

23

longer range [ which would include gap families.

24

However [ in this particular project the Nunokawas

25

have already proven in their first phase that they

If there were more affordables that were
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1

have -- that their subdivision was already geared

2

for the gap group and they sold to

3

were for the gap group families.

4

understanding is that the second phase is also for

5

gap group families.

6

that at least 10 percent be priced at 120 and below.

7

But either Haunani or Scott could confirm or deny

8

what I just said.

9
10

CHAIR CARROLL:
MS. LEMN:

their prices
And my

So that's the reason why we ask

Applicant, come to the podium.

Hi again, Council Members.

I'm sure that a lot

11

of questions were raised in your mind after

12

Mr. Pullman spoke, and I'm sure you would want us to

13

respond to that.

14

up, but as he came back to sit near us he said I

15

really didn't want to speak for you because you

16

never know what you should be representing for

17

someone else.

18

done house lot products.

19

products, and so the 500 to 600K feature he's

20

looking may be -- and he's still here, but maybe a

21

figure he came after he started looking at, well, if

22

I have this lot, and then I tack on it a house! then

23

maybe it will be this.

24
25

I'd like to thank him for showing

Basically, as we noted, we have not
We've done lot only

If you look at our Environmental Assessment,
it notes in there that when we began this project,
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1

we looked at doing these lots between 140 to 190,000

2

range.

3

toward the 150 to possibly 200, already from all the

4

requirements placed on us at State Land Use

5

Commission.

6

especially if we end up doing it by ourselves, which

7

we hope we're not, we're hoping we're getting

8

participation from other projects, is not an

9

insignificant infrastructural cost.

10
11

We're starting to feel like it's moving

You know, putting a traffic signal in,

So that is

where we're looking at.
When we did Waiolani Elua, we didn't have the

12

same kind of infrastructural requirements.

13

recall, we called it a plug in subdivision, and that

14

subdivision we sold the lots at between 135 to 170

15

plus thousand, so that was the range.

16

onto that a house, it's well below 500,000 that

17

these families are getting into their houses at.

18

You'd have to build a pretty substantial house, you

19

know, on that lot to get to that range.

20

answer the question?

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

As you

If you tack

Did I

Mr. Pontanilla.
Between the 121 percent and 140

23

percent, what is the pricing range 121 percent and

24

at the high 140?

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms. Lee.
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MS. LEE:

Yes, the -- I'm looking for my matrix.

Okay,

2

120 percent for a single family house at 6 percent

3

interest would sell for $319,000, and 140 percent

4

would be 379,300.

5
6

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

And the median income for that

particular group?

7

MS. LEE:

8

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

9

That's 120 to 140.

Would be 74,800 to 87,290.
So all I'm saying is that, you

know, if you fall $2, $1 above that particular

10

price, $1 on your median income above 120, you know,

11

you're out of the market.

12

family that's pretty close to that that we need to

13

take care of.

That's all I'm saying.

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

16

17

And we do have a lot of

Thank you.

Thank you.

Ms. Anderson.

Could I ask them while they're up

there what are the size of the lots?
MS. LEMN:

The lots range in size from 7,500 square feet,

18

that's the minimum for an R-2 Residential District,

19

and it ranges up to above 12,000, but that is an

20

aberration lot.

21

this is based on just a preliminary subdivision draw

22

in.

23

lots as shown here, the average lot size was above

24

8,500 square feet.

25

When I -- you have to remember that

So based on this, when I calculated all of the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay, thank you.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

LU 3/2/05

35

1

CHAIR CARROLL:

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

3

Mr. Mateo, followed by Mr. Molina.
Chairman, thank you very much.

Good

afternoon, Ms. Lee.

4

MS. LEE:

Good afternoon.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

I guess continuing on where Member

6

Pontanilla was going, because you are

both of you

7

are still in a negotiation stage at this point,

8

because they have no agreement, actually, so because

9

this is still fair ground, open ground at this

10

point, and because the whole project's intent was to

11

deal with the gap group, is the Department able to

12

actually look at the 140 and work its way down from

13

there?

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

15

MS. LEE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

17

Ms. Lee?

Yes, we could.
And is that something that the

Director would be receptive to?

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms. Lee.

19

MS. LEE:

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Yes, we would be.
Okay.

Because my only concern is

21

when I take a look at the project and I'm listening

22

to the kind of dollar values being flown around,

23

yeah, and I guess when the first testifier came up

24

and looked at five and 600,000 dollars, I don't know

25

who that was affordable for, honestly.
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1

taking a look at this project here and I'm taking a

2

look at the 120 and below, and even at like, you

3

know, upwards to the 190,000, you know, I've still

4

got to ask questions like, you know, this is only

5

the lot.

6

home on it, they're out of the market.

7

of hoping that the Department continues to negotiate

8

to actually come up with something that is

9

affordable.

10

A lot of our people, you know, to put a

140,000 is a nice

So I'm kind

is a nice figure to look

11

at, but that's just the lot, and we need to take a

12

look at what the cost of the house is going to be

13

that needs to go on that lot, you know.

14

still looking at affordability, and I'm still having

15

a hard time.

16

Department in this pending negotiation?

17

MS. LEE:

So I'm

Are there limitations for the

No, we're just recommending a ceiling of 120,

18

which I thought a few seconds ago you wanted to

19

raise to 140.

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Well, I'm looking at the intent of

the project was to serve the gap group.

22

MS. LEE:

Right.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And I'm looking at, you know,

24

providing -- or looking at affordable housing for

25

all the groups that needs housing.

My initial
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1

interest definitely would be those who fall in the

2

lower categories, but, you know, the reality is

3

we've got to include all the groups.

4

an intent of this project, then we've just got to

5

see how we can work all of the inclusions in your

6

negotiation with the applicant.

7
8

9

MS. LEE:

For the 10 percent?

And if this is

In other words, work in all

the groups for ten -- within ten houses?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Making options available so, you

10

know, greater opportunities for more people would be

11

available even -- even if it was less than the ten

12

or eleven homes.

13

across the board.

14

MS. LEE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

And I'm just looking at being fair

All right.
Thank you.

Thank you.

17

Mr. Kane.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

Mr. Molina, followed by

Thank you, Chairman.

A question

19

for the applicants.

20

Mrs. Nunokawa.

21

affordable units to be built in concurrence with

22

your market units?

23

MR. NUNOKAWA:

Good afternoon, Mr. and

Is it your intention of the

What we have had with our preliminary

24

discussions with the -- Ms. Lee is that we would be

25

asking to be able to sell lots in the affordable
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1

range, and the reason for that is -- well, there's a

2

bunch of different reasons for it, one of which is

3

that what we found with Waiolani Elua is there are a

4

lot of people out there that can produce sweat

5

equity and they can bring their family to the table,

6

so to speak, and they can actually produce a house

7

cheaper than we could do so.

8

that this should be across the board everybody

9

should get lots and go out and build their own

10

house, but there certainly is a segment of the

11

community could be served by doing that.

12

And we're not saying

The other reason that we have asked is

13

because when we did Waiolani Elua we were asked by

14

Council to produce three affordable houses,

15

house-lot packages, and because of the concern

16

regarding concurrency we were told to -- that we

17

could sell half the subdivision lots and then we had

18

to build the three affordable houses and then

19

before we could sell the remaining -- the remaining

20

lots in the subdivision.

21

effect of that was was to bifurcate our sales

22

program by upwards of six or eight months.

23

And what the unintended

And that might not seem like a whole lot to

24

people, but what it boils down to is because one of

25

the ways we saved money, and quite frankly passed

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

LU 3/2/05

39

1

that savings onto the buyer, was to use -- we sold

2

the property with a bonded final subdivision

3

approval.

4

that six months that the construction is going on is

5

the same six months nobody's going to be able to

6

build on a lot anyway, because they have to get

7

their plans drawn, they have to go through a

8

permitting process, they have to get their lender in

9

place.

And the reason we did that was because

So it's an overlap.

If you make it

10

sequential, somebody pays for that hold cost.

You

11

know, we'll incur it through bank financing and we

12

will pass that on to the buyer, because that -- you

13

know, that's the only way we can do it.
So if nothing else, we are asking for the

14
15

opportunity to provide whatever the affordable

16

requirements are in a lot-only basis.

17

our preference, but clearly that is the decision

18

that Council needs to make.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

20

Chairman.

21

at this time.

22

many --

23

MR. NUNOKAWA:

Okay.

That would be

And one other question,

I presume you have a large waiting list
Can you share with the Committee how

We're in excess of 350 names, and to put it

24

in perspective, we don't have -- Waiolani Mauka is

25

not in the phone book.

We have no way of -- you
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1

know, people call us literally at home.

2

people who have called is because somebody heard

3

about it and told them, et cetera.

4

have kept a low profile, in some ways intentionally,

5

because it's a little early to -- you know, to be

6

going through this whole thing, but we've had

7

people -- when we were completed with Waiolani Elua,

8

we had over 100 names waiting for just in case a lot

9

fell out in Waiolani Elua.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

11

Chairman.

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay, thank you.

Most of the

So this is -- we

Thank you,

Mr. Kane.
Thank you, Chair.

Question for

14

Ms. Lee.

Help me understand if within a

15

negotiation, if we just do a lot only, the

16

affordable aspect and lot only, are there going to

17

be restrictions or is that something that we deal

18

with here regarding what kind of house is built on

19

it?

20

putting a nice luxury home on it, is there some sort

21

of restriction in there?

22

intent of providing an affordable house because

23

we're only selling it at lot only at affordable

24

price and the freedom is there to put up a house

25

that's bigger than the guy that's next door.

I mean buying an affordable lot and then

Because then we lose the
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1

that an issue that you folks deal with in your

2

discussion.

3

MS. LEE:

Not specifically, Council Member.

What we do

4

enforce is the income qualification.

So I suppose

5

it's possible to put up a mansion even though you

6

earn $70,000, but it's highly unlikely.

7

based on, you know, family size and income

8

qualification.

9

buyer being a first-time home buyer, owner occupant,

So it's

And that also -- we also look at the

10

doesn't have property elsewhere, other kinds of

11

restrictions, ten-year buy back.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah, so on the

I think you noted

13

eleven units, yeah, because 10 percent of the

14

project, 108, so we're looking at eleven units?

15

MS. LEE:

Uh-huh.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So those are specific restrictions

17

that's going to be in discussion as far as the

18

ten-year buy back and

19

MS. LEE:

Those are our standard restrictions

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

MS. LEE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay, thank you for --

-- that we apply to all projects.
Thank you for that clarification.

I

23

guess the other -- maybe a concern, and maybe you

24

can help me have a better understanding, is because

25

you may have a husband and wife with a couple of
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1

kids, the generic scenario, coming in and they would

2

qualify for the lot only, and then after they do

3

that, they go hui with their aunty and their cousin

4

and their grandma and they build one six-bedroom

5

house on one 10,000 square foot lot, is that -- is

6

that a loophole that's potentially there to get

7

around that qualification and the restriction that

8

is provided by the affordable housing restrictions

9

that you folks function with?

10

MS. LEE:

We've never run across that situation.

In this

11

case I suppose they could build an ohana, but no,

12

we've never run across this.

13

the reason why we generally don't run across this

14

situation is because it's not very often that a

15

developer provides lots only, and usually it's the

16

house and the lot.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

18

MS. LEE:

And generally -- and

Yeah.

But in this case they've done -- this is their

19

second time and there may be one or two other

20

instances and we've never run across a situation

21

where we've required a sales price to be target to a

22

certain income group and they ended up abusing it.

23

We've never run across that.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah, okay.

Okay, thank you.

you, Chair.
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1

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Ms. Anderson.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Ms. Lee, in your April 23rd letter to Joe

3
4

Alueta regarding this project, you say that we've

5

reviewed the subject application, would like to

6

recommend that approval of the change in zoning

7

application be conditioned upon the project

8

complying with the attached Maui County housing

9

policy, and that policy is not provided in this

10

document.

Would you have a copy of that?

11

MS. LEE:

Yes, we can provide you with a copy.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

MS. LEE:

Now?

Not at the moment.

See, we are -- we're also in

14

the process of revising that.

15

the one that would have been applicable at that

16

time.

When did we reply to you?

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

MS. LEE:

19

MR. ALUETA:

20

MS. LEE:

21
22
23
24
25

Let me see if I have

Okay.

What year?

This was just April of 2004.

You passed it to the Council?

No, to the applicant.

Oh, okay.

I think I may have a copy, and if I

do, you can have a copy of it.
MS. LEMN:

Scott's looking for his copy right now.

It may

take a few minutes, though.
MS. LEE:

We're in the process of revising what you're

about to look at because the median income was just
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1

raised from

to 62,350 as of a few days ago,

2

so we're working --

60 r 700

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

4

MS. LEE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

MS. LEE:

Raised by who?

By the Federal government.

HUD r uh-huh.

HUD?
So we're in the process of

7

revising all the numbers to reflect the changes, so

8

that's -- that's perhaps why I may not have a copy

9

here.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Is this the housing policy that

11

you presented to the Council, I think it was term

12

before last?

13

MS. LEE:

Yes.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Does it include r what's the

15

phrase, a buy-out phrase?

16

of providing the housing r you can provide funds?

17

MS. LEE:

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

MS. LEE:

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

In other words r instead

In lieu contributions?
In lieu contribution.

Thank you.

Yeah, that's -- it includes that information.
Wellr this concerns me,

21

Mr. Chairman r because that policy was rejected by

22

this Council because they didn't agree with in lieu

23

payments.

24

Council that's the body that sets policy for this

25

County.

And it's my understanding that it's the

And the only policy for affordable housing
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1

that I'm aware of that this Council has adopted is a

2

50 percent affordable housing requirement, which is

3

currently in our County Code.

4

MS. LEMN:

So--

I do note those are for County affordable

5

housing projects.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Excuse me.

It's my concern that

7

we are allowing developers to negotiate privately

8

with this Department who's establishing a 10 percent

9

requirement, and this has not been reviewed or

10

approved by the Council.

11

projects coming forward that are providing 50

12

percent affordable housing and are providing that

13

affordable housing component at under 100 percent of

14

the median income, which is what we need to address

15

in this County.

16

that's going out to developers that is encouraging

17

them to come forward with only 10 percent, because

18

this is not a policy that this Council as a body has

19

adopted.

20

CHAIR CARROLL:

21

MS. LEE:

22

There are many other

So I'd like to see this policy

Ms. Lee.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
First of all, when you get your cOPYI you

23

will see that it's titled Maui County Administrative

24

Affordable Housing Recommended Guidelines.

25

I don't know what could be more vague and innocuous
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1

than that title.

2

this way so no one would be misled to think that

3

this is an ordinance.

4

it's only for recommendations.

5

the final decisions.

6

today that this is what the Department is

7

recommending to the Council.

8

final decision.

9

This is -- I purposely wrote it

This is only a guideline and
The Council makes

And I've said several times

The Council makes the

Secondly, there is no ordinance which

10

requires 20 -- excuse me, 50 percent affordable.

11

the 201G process there is a requirement of 51

12

percent affordable.

13

voluntary program under Chapter 2.86 which allows

14

for a 50-50, 50 percent affordable, 50 percent

15

market program, but there is no ordinance in the

16

County Code which requires anyone to provide 50

17

percent affordable housing in any kind of

18

development.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

In

In Chapter 2.86 there is a

The ordinance I'm referring to,

20

Ms. Lee, is for a change in zoning and it does allow

21

the Council to require 50 percent.

22

saying this is only guidelines, then why in your

23

letter to the Staff are you calling it the Maui

24

County housing policy?

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

And if you're

Ms. Lee.
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MS. LEE:

It should

This -- I would say that's an error.

have been called guidelines.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.

Do you have a copy of

that?
MS. LEE:

We'll -- we'll provide you one.

I have a copy

6

in front of me here but it's all marked up because

7

we've been working on revising this, and I am not at

8

liberty to give you my copy which has all of the

9

suggested changes.

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Ms. Johnson.

I have questions of Haunani or
I was looking

12

Scott, if you could answer these.

13

through -- and this is the transmittal that came

14

from our Corporation Counsel for March 2nd, and

15

attached to it is the bill for the ordinance

16

recommending these changes, and then the other

17

document that is attached is Exhibit 2.

18

questions, which I think probably you're the only

19

ones that can answer these, so I'll ask them now,

20

in -- in there there's several references to

21

deferral agreements that Wailuku Agribusiness agreed

22

to that are recorded with the Bureau of Conveyances,

23

and in these deferral agreements I just was curious

24

to know if we had a copy of those deferral

25

agreements or if you had a copy that you could
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1

provide us and if you knew generally what was

2

contained within those agreements.

3

MS. LEMN:

Yes.

Basically I don't have the copies with me

4

here.

The copies actually consume a whole box load

5

of documents, and essentially what they are is that

6

when there's a subdivision process, the person who

7

is subdividing enters into agreements with Public

8

Works and the County of Maui with regards to certain

9

kind of infrastructural improvements that may be

10

required, and on occasion it's determined that while

11

these improvements look like they will be necessary

12

at some point in time, they're not really necessary

13

now without a triggering event.

14

triggering event hasn't occurred and so there is a

15

deferral agreement that has been entered into

16

between Wailuku Ag and the County of Maui at that

17

time.

18

And so the

And what unfortunately happens is that these

19

deferral agreements get subsumed by new deferral

20

agreements each time they come in to meet their

21

requirements or each time they come in to subdivide.

22

And I have never seen a situation in which an

23

agreement has been fulfilled and the County of Maui

24

has said that they would agree to have that document

25

basically waived from the Bureau of Conveyances.
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You know, a document that said that you have met

2

your agreement and we're going to file it with the

3

Bureau of Conveyances so that this can be taken off

4

the title report.

5

So as a consequence, you will have enumerable

6

versions of various agreements and deferral

7

agreements any time there's a property that has been

8

subdivided and subdivided and subdivided.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, well, because these deferral

10

agreements which are referred to in the document

11

that we have were between Wailuku Agribusiness

12

basically and the County, and in some cases they're

13

also with private parties, because there's

14

several -- maybe not necessarily the deferral

15

agreement, but there's other agreements such as

16

easements, there's recognition of easements having

17

to do with irrigation water.

18

I will ask those questions of Corporation Counsel,

19

but essentially, then, my concern would be with

20

regard to the deferral agreements, who, then,

21

performs and what essentially were those deferral

22

agreements requiring?

23

Agribusiness is not going to fulfill the obligation

24

under the deferral agreement, what did it say and

25

what was their agreement in terms of their

I am concerned -- and

Because if Wailuku
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1

participation with roadway improvements that were in

2

that particular area?

3

MS. LEMN:

Well, I do note in terms of I'm sure your level

4

of security, all of these agreements run with the

5

land.

6

or the County of Maui would have entered into

7

agreement and it would have just been purely them.

8

All of these agreements are to the assignee and runs

9

with the land.

There is not a situation in which Wailuku Ag

And if you want to go through that

10

box load of agreements, I'm sure that we can make

11

that available to you, but it will be very boring

12

reading I'm sure for you.

13

MR. NUNOKAWA:

Councilmember Johnson, I'd also like to

14

note that in this situation what ends up happening

15

is when you have a deferral agreement on a piece of

16

property that runs with the land, we -- when we go

17

in for subdivision, the Department of Public Works

18

will be looking at these things as well, and some of

19

the conditions of subdivision approval will be

20

there's anything lingering from the deferral

21

agreement or otherwise, would be attached to this

22

new -- you know, to your new conditions, and I see

23

that we have Milton here.

24

on the spot, but I think he can probably verify that

25

for you.

if

I don't want to put him
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I know, and that's another issue

2

that we're looking into is collecting on many of

3

those deferral agreements.

4

I had is about there's a subdivision requirement

5

it's an agreement that was entered into on this

6

document on 3/14 of '94 between Wailuku Agribusiness

7

and the Board of Water Supply.

8

essentially what that particular -- because it's not

9

attached to this, I don't know what it says, but do

The other question that

And do you know

10

you have any idea what that particular agreement

11

states?

12

MR. NUNOKAWA:

I do not recall anything with the Board of

13

Water Supply pertaining to this specific parcel,

14

because remember this is part of a -- this piece of

15

property has been subdivided, as I recall, at least

16

three times, and I think the only thing that I can

17

come up with is when they did Waiolani subdivision,

18

they entered into an agreement with the Department

19

of Water Supply to build that 300,000 gallon storage

20

tank that's up at the top of Waiko Road.

21

only thing that would immediately trigger to mind

22

that it might be, but beyond that, you know,

23

without -- I mean, we do have all the documents.

24

did it during our due diligence when we purchased

25

the property, but that's the only thing that I would
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1

have recalled that might have been with the

2

Department of Water Supply.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, this is on page 3 of Exhibit

4

2, it says the agreement to defer subdivision

5

requirements dated February 21st, 1990 recorded in

6

the Bureau of Conveyances document, blah, blah, by

7

and between Wailuku Agribusiness, subdivider, and

8

the Department of Water Supply of the County of

9

Maui.

10
11

So you think it was for that tank that was

built sometime after 1990?
MS. LEMN:

Actually, now I -- we initially thought you

12

said '94, but now that you say '90, then what

and

13

you have to understand that as you're looking

14

through that document, there are many, many, many

15

agreements that were entered into.

16

kind of trying to pull off the top of our head based

17

on the time line that you're giving us.

18

point in time when they cut that road, that parcel,

19

our parcel, Waiolani Elua, and then this parcel, the

20

28 acres, looped around and was part of a much, much

21

larger parcel, all got cut down.

22

that access road, Pilikana Street, they had to cut

23

this parcel in half.

24

half, they created that vacant lot, which became

25

Waiolani Elua, but stood vacant for ten years.

So we're just

At one

So when they did

When they cut that parcel in
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Now, whenever there's a subdivision -- and of

2

course Milton is a better person to ask about these

3

things, but whenever there's a subdivision there's a

4

requirement about fire flow requirements along a

5

roadway.

6

time line, I believe that that agreement had to do

7

with the fire flow that they were requesting along

8

Pilikana Street, but it really was one of those

9

things that when they're looking at it and say if

And if I recall correctly in terms of the

10

this is ever developed, this is really going to need

11

some fire flow.

12

vacant, so was the property that we're looking at as

13

a project right now.

14

anticipated to be vacant for many years.

15

consequence, the idea was that that waterline and

16

fire flow was going to be deferred until such time

17

as Waiolani Elua was developed.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

As it stood, that parcel was

So it's vacant and it was

Okay.

As a

So -- and then the one -- I

19

guess it was, because there's two conditions with

20

the Board of Water Supply.

21

number 13 on page 6, and I'll just read it.

22

terms and provisions including the failure to comply

23

with any covenants, conditions, and reservations

24

contained in the modification of subdivision

25

requirements agreement dated March 14th,

This one is on -- it's
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1

recorded in the Bureau of Conveyances between

2

Wailuku Agribusiness Company and Board of Water

3

Supply of the County of Maui.

4

additional agreement, but that one is the one that

5

you're not sure what that modification of

6

subdivision requirement agreement says?

7

MS. LEMN:

So this is an

Well, I believe that what I just related to you

8

was what happened in that time period.

It takes a

9

while to get an agreement entered into, and it is

10

right at the point in time that Waiolani was getting

11

developed, so the time connection works.

12

not the case, then I'll be sure to, you know, look

13

up that agreement and to let you know.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

If it's

And I'll try to conclude as

15

quickly as I can, Mr. Chair.

This morning we had

16

another issue, and anyone can correct me if I'm

17

wrong, but I understood that one of the requirements

18

underneath the Water Code is that because the use of

19

the water is for agriculture in that area, or at

20

least any water over -- you know, that will be

21

supplied to that particular area, it's currently

22

reserved for agricultural use.

23

understanding that the -- in this case I don't know

24

whether it would be you or it would have been

25

wailuku Agribusiness that would have filed for the

It was my
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1

certification of water use for the conversion of it

2

from an agricultural use now to an urban or

3

residential use.

4

stands or were there any comments made by the State

5

Water Commission or by, you know, Wailuku

6

Agribusiness with regard to that filing for that

7

certification, since it would be a different use?

8
9

MS. LEMN:

Do you have any idea where that

I think that might be a Department of Water

Supply question.

Whenever there's an issue of

10

water, as you well know, it's a very, very

11

complicated issue.

12

to providing the storage necessary, and I know that

13

the Administration has been diligently looking at

14

the various sources.

15

converted I really can't tell you.

16

that's in their purview.

17

MR. NUNOKAWA:

We've been working on our side

How all of that is going to be
I think that

Councilmember Johnson, just as a matter of

18

clarification, the comments that we got back from

19

the State Water Commission were effectively you're

20

aware that lao Aquifer is under designation, talk

21

with the County.

22

was, and the County's letters up until very recently

23

were -- each letter we got from them was there'S X

24

amount of water available from the lao Aquifer.

25

We're aware that additional sources have come on

You know, that's basically what it
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1

line, but we have stated many times publicly that

2

we're aware that if there's not source, you know,

3

this project will wait until there is source.

4

1'm not sure if 1'm answering your specific

5

question, but --

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And

And it may be that I do have to

7

ask this of the Board of Water Supply, but it was my

8

understanding from an earlier meeting that we did

9

have that there is a certification requirement that

10

when the uses changed, I don't know whose obligation

11

it is to do that, but somebody, whether it's you or

12

whether it's the County or the State, you know, that

13

is a requirement per my understanding.

14

question is because when I'm reading through this

15

documentation also there appears to be easements,

16

and they're also -- and I don't know whether these

17

are kuleana parcels or not, but the names for these

18

particular individuals, Cockett, Louzada, Flores,

19

Keawe, Mehao, Shaw, Pakele, and Cornwell, they're

20

either easements or kuleana parcels that are

21

contained -- it may not be on your specific site,

22

but would you -- if you can't address that now, can

23

you at some point in time provide where those

24

parcels or where those easements are located?

25

MR. NUNOKAWA:

And my final

I think I can address that question.
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1

of all, we have clear title to the entire 28.7 plus

2

or minus acres.

3

that historically -- some of the names that you have

4

mentioned, I remember seeing, looking at the

5

Land Commission award maps.

6

of title of transfer of those properties to Wailuku

7

Agribusiness and then -- well, actually, Wailuku

8

Sugar, you know, converting to Wailuku Agribusiness

9

and then to us.

There are Land Commission awards

old

There is a clear chain

There is one easement still on the

10

property for -

11

Wailuku Agribusiness' request for a kuleana

12

waterline, and that is noted on the subdivision map

13

and will -- any lots subjected to it will -- it will

14

run with the land.

15

which was actually rerouted at

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And that -- the reason that I ask

16

is because those -- those irrigation easements

17

and they are recorded with the Bureau of

18

Conveyances.

19

way of knowing whether those are specifically on

20

your property or not.

I was just concerned because I have no

So you said --

21

MR. NUNOKAWA:

Well, interestingly enough it wasn't

22

before.

23

to -- it's south -- what would it be, southwest

24

corner of the property.

25

property.

It was at Wailuku Agribusiness' request

It runs right along that

Because the kuleana waterline is actually
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1

serving the properties owned by Yamaoka, Pinto,

2

Vida.

3

waterline.

4

because they needed something that was a little bit

5

more certain.

6

kept on breaking down on them.

Those properties are served by that kuleana
And Wailuku Ag needed to reroute it

You know, before the system was --

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

Okay.

Thank you.

Okay, thank you very much.

Members, further questions?

Mr. Molina.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

11

CHAIR CARROLL:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, thank you

Followed by Mr. Kane.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Let's

13

see, I guess my question relates to the traffic.

14

don't know if you can answer it or if you're going

15

to have your traffic consultant.

16

know what specific traffic matters were resulted

17

with the DOT?

18

just curious to know what specifically was resolved

19

and how are they going to mitigate the concerns that

20

was brought about originally?

21

MR. NUNOKAWA:

I

I just want to

Initially they had some concerns, I'm

I know you're kind of surprised, because we

22

actually got some response from DOT.

We were kind

23

of surprised as well, but basically I thought -

24

think we actually have that on a slide, so we'll

25

pull it up.

I

But basically the three conditions, off
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1

my memory is, one, that a traffic signal at Pilikana

2

and Honoapiilani Highway will be active by the time

3

we have final subdivision approval, or before our

4

bond is returned in a situation where it's bonded.

5

The other had to do with they wanted -- there is --

6

if you take a look at the bottom of your map

7

pertaining to lots 15, 16, and 17 on the preliminary

8

map, that property jogs out at that point for some

9

reason.

And they were concerned that they might

10

need that for widening purposes, not to widen it to

11

four lanes, because I think even they start to

12

recognize that's going to be difficult because of,

13

you know, historic bridges and some other things,

14

but because of that intersection area.

15

another item that when we do the traffic signal

16

process that we will have to take a look at that and

17

see whether or not additional lands along those

18

three properties will be required to have additional

19

widening at that point.

20

So that's

And then the last one -- you need to switch

21

to the next page.

Oh, there was some concerns with

22

regards to the traffic report itself, having to do

23

with whether or not a full traffic signal

24

warranted -- warrant study was warranted, for lack

25

of a better term.

And, you know, I guess our
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1

traffic consultant felt, you know, it was abundantly

2

obvious that a signal needed to be there, so why go

3

through every single warrant, but the DOT had a

4

concern with regards to that.

5

if they felt it was necessary when we designed the

6

intersection signalization, that they wanted an

7

updated TIAR with a full warrant study, that they

8

could impose that upon us and we would comply with

9

it.

10

11

And so we agreed that

And so when we go to do the intersection

design, that is a possibility.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay, thank you.

So I guess

12

inadvertently with this recommendation for the

13

traffic signal, it will serve as an additional I

14

guess traffic calming device through Waikapu?

15

Because I know there's been concerns brought about

16

in the community about people speeding along

17

Honoapiilani Highway.

18

recommendations for two additional traffic signals

19

in Waikapu along Waiko Road and I can't think of the

20

name of the other --

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

So with the already I guess

Pilikana.
Pilikana, so we're looking at

23

this traffic signal as well, which will I guess stem

24

the flow of traffic I guess to the recommended

25

speed, I guess, which is, what, 30 miles an hour?
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MR. NUNOKAWA:

Well, as our traffic consultant did tell

2

us, you know, the silver lining to two signals so

3

close to one another is that it will to a certain

4

degree have an effect of slowing traffic down

5

through Waikapu, which is, as you know, a continual

6

problem.

7

Director Foley, I think that if people drove through

8

Waikapu at 30 miles per hour, some of the other

9

issues wouldn't be so intense as they are.

And with all deference to Planning

And so

10

there is -- I recognize the issue of having two

11

signals so close together, but for the community

12

itself the silver lining to this is it probably will

13

manage the speed through that corridor a little bit

14

better.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

Mr. Kane.
No, I was going to ask if -- I don't

18

have any more questions for Ms. Lee, and I don't

19

know if anybody else had any questions for Ms. Lee,

20

so I was just wondering if --

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

23

I'd like to follow up, Mr. Chair.

And I'll yield if that's -- if

Ms. Lee's presence is still needed.

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Ms. Lee, in regards to the

2

discussion we previously had, the attached -- the

3

attachment was provided to us, the attachment to

4

your April 23rd letter, and it clearly says Maui

5

County housing policy.

6

MS. LEE:

And the title was changed.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

MS. LEE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Has subsequently been changed?

It was changed shortly after.

Last year.

Okay, my concern is that if this

10

information is being forwarded to potential

11

developers, then this is their expectation of what

12

is going to be expected of them.

13

before the Council and the Council isn't happy with

14

it and that changes everything for the developer.

15

So I think we need to, you know, proceed with haste

16

in getting a County housing policy that is agreeable

17

to the Council, adopted by the Council by ordinance,

18

and something that everybody knows is what's going

19

to be required to be followed.

And then they come

Myself, I have a very hard time allowing

20
21

further development for housing that is not for the

22

residents of Maui County.

23

that you could maybe try again to get a policy that

24

the Council would agree to and formally adopt.

25

MS. LEE:

So I would hope, Ms. Lee,

We've already been asked that by the Chair of
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1

the Housing Committee, Councilmember Mateo.

2

thought he gave me at least 30 days to come up with

3

that.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

MS. LEE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

I

Time's up.

Not 30 days yet.
Okay, thank you very much.

Thank you.

One thing over here, the State

8

Department of Transportation conditions were

9

incorporated into the LUC decision and order on the

10

district boundary amendment.

11

be appropriate to include these conditions in our

12

change of zoning bill?

13

Department, or I'm not too sure.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

15

CHAIR CARROLL:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

18

Is it also -- would it

And this -

maybe the

Mr.

Mr. Alueta or
Are you talking on including other

conditions, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL:

No, those existing conditions, if we

19

should put them in the zoning bill, the ones from

20

the LUC.

21

the LUC decision and order.

22

appropriate to put those conditions in the changing

23

of -- our change of zoning bill?

24

necessary or advisable?

25

The ones from the DOT, they were put into

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

But would it be

Would that be

You're asking the body?
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1

CHAIR CARROLL:

I'm asking the body.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Oh.

I'm sorry, Chair, I was in a

3

different context.

4

questions about something else.

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

Oh, I'm sorry.

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11
12

No, no, no.

I mean, if that's where

you want to go, I mean, I can

8

10

I was ready to ask some other

CHAIR CARROLL:

It was just --- revamp my brain.

There was a silence over there and I was

trying to fill the void.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Kane.

No, and I'm sorry, Mr. Chair.

I

13

wanted to find out if anybody else needed Ms. Lee's

14

services, and if

15

wanted to ask some other questions of the applicant

16

regarding some other issues, and I wasn't prepared

17

to respond to your request, so ...

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

- and Ms. Anderson did, but I

Ms. Tavares.
Yeah, if you don't mind, Mr. Kane.

Yeah, I yield.
I do have a question for Ms. Lee.

22

In looking at the affordable ranges, were you able

23

to extrapolate out how much was attributable to a

24

house and how much to the lot to come up with the

25

affordable range for the house lot?
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1

MS. LEE:

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

MS. LEE:

4

It roughly is a 50/50 breakdown.

So roughly the lot will then go for, at 120

percent of median income, roughly $150,000.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

had for Ms. Lee.

7

Oh, okay.

CHAIR CARROLL:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

Does anybody else have any

8

more questions for Ms. Lee?

9

o'clock.

10
11

That's all I

It is almost 5:00

Hearing none, do you have any further

you'd like to ask before we release you, Ms. Lee?
MS. LEE:

No, Mr. Chair, I was just happy to be with all

12

of you.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

Thank you very

Mr. Kane.

Yeah, and so my final comment is

16

the -

17

Mr. Nunokawa and Ms. Lemn, is it going to be

18

I don't know if this is what Ms. Anderson is asking,

19

is it going -- the parameters are going to be set by

20

this document, the -- what we have in front of us,

21

Maui County housing policy, which had a title

22

change, but are you basing it off of this

23

information?

24

you work with?

25

MS. LEE:

your ongoing negotiations with -- with
and

I mean, this is your parameter that

Yes, Council Member.

Usually what happens is I
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1

come up with a recommendation and either you decide

2

to follow it or throw it away, you know.

3

basically whatever you decide today is what would be

4

my -- my instructions to use in creating an

5

affordable housing agreement.

6

way we would normally do it.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So

That's -- that's the

Okay, and the reason I'm asking that

8

question is because of Condition No. 4 from the

9

Planning Commission talking about entering into an

10

affordable housing agreement, for us at this

11

juncture it seems appropriate for us to make a

12

determination as to what the parameters will be if

13

it's inconsistent with this.

14

something that's in here, i.e. if we wanted 50

15

percent affordable, as an example, that that's

16

something that we would have to decide at the time

17

that the Chair is ready to recommend and this body's

18

ready to move forward.

You know, if it's not

So I just wanted to find out from -- if we

19
20

weren't to say anything at this point and we would

21

moved forward, that what Condition No. 4 is

22

basically you're going to be working

23

the parameters you're working off of to determine

24

what that agreement would be; is that correct?

25

MS. LEE:

these are

Right, 10 percent of the lots at 120 percent of
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1

median income.

2

change that, then that's fine.

3

not in negotiation.

4

with.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

MS. LEE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And if you decide that you want to
Because we're really

I mean, that's what we came up

Okay, thank you.

Yesterday, by the way, yesterday.
Yeah, and I think Ms. Lemn said the

8

discussions just started, which is more accurate, I

9

guess, yesterday.

10
11

CHAIR CARROLL:

So I'm done.

Thank you.

And does anybody else have

anything for Ms. Lee?

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

Ms. Johnson.
Yes, Alice, and I'll make this

15

real quick, because you probably have the answer.

16

Recently at the Planning Commission I believe it was

17

Maui Breakers that was required to do I think was it

18

50 percent of their units by the Planning Commission

19

requirement, had to be affordable?

20

MS. LEE:

The West Maui Breakers I think was a little bit

21

unusual because originally we recommended 10 percent

22

and the developer said, well, I can do this, I can

23

do so many units, I think it was like 43, at a

24

certain income level.

25

made it a condition.

So the Planning Commission
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1

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

2

MS. LEE:

3

4

Okay.

It's not a policy of the Commission to require

50/50.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And then I think that was

5

predicated upon monies that he was going to get from

6

another entitYt and then when that got switched

7

awaYt he got stuck with the condition anyway; is

8

that correct?

9

MS. LEE:

That's rightt he -- that was tentative.

Any

10

additional monies going to his project was

11

tentative t and he wasn't supposed to talk about it

12

because it wasn't final.

13

that's what happened.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

But he talked about itt so

But I do believe

- but then it

15

amounted to roughly 50 percent t then t as a

16

requirement?

17

MS. LEE:

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

20

A little less than 50.
A little less than that t okaYt

thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Anything further for Ms. Lee?

21

If not t with a vote of thanks

22

for being with us today.

23

MS. LEE:

24

CHAIR CARROLL:

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

t

thank you very much

Thank you.
Members?
Thank

Mr. Kane.
YOU t

Chair.
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1

for the applicant regarding I guess the perimeter

2

that faces the existing Waikapu residence that were

3

noted on the map, I believe, that's sitting in front

4

of Mr. Nunokawa, and we can back up one.

5

And so it's the one that runs from the southwest

6

corner on the top middle portion of the map and it

7

comes down and then does a jog in and back around on

8

the bottom of the Waihee Ditch where the Vida

9

residence is.

That one.

And I'll make a note that on what we

10

have in -- you can barely see it on this one, that

11

the topo lines, the topography lines, show -- are

12

consistent in showing that there's a drop off that

13

goes into or a reduction of elevation that goes into

14

all of the existing lots from

15

property.

16

- from the subject

And so my concern is what kind of retention

17

is going to be there, and whether -- and I heard the

18

applicant talk about putting a fence around that

19

perimeter, on that side anyway.

20

background, Chair, to the members.

21

there's the development that's going on right behind

22

us over here, the Kehalani Mauka side.

23

they have the existing -- on Keanu Street, the

24

people who are on the perimeter of that are dealing

25

with something similar, where after they did their

And I'll give some
Currently
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1

lots, their dirt is running down.

2

get rain, you're going to have one flow of water

3

that's going to go into the people's existing lots

4

that have been there for 30, 40, 50 years, or

5

however long it is.

6

And so I'm

So whenever you

because of what's going on

7

there, it made me aware of -- because I'm getting

8

phone calls at my office from existing Wailuku

9

residents of the same thing over here.

Now,

10

initially I brought -- and I did have a chance to

11

talk to the applicants privately, and I did mention

12

that there was a question of what the agreement

13

would be regarding some sort of fencing, but since

14

that discussion I've had phone calls that has made

15

it even more heightened in my mind, which makes me

16

believe strongly that there is going to be some

17

necessity of putting some sort of retention or

18

making sure that what's on the sub-applicant's site

19

doesn't flow into existing property owners' land, as

20

far as whether it's water or dirt loss or soil

21

erosion.

22

So if I can get some comment maybe from the

23

applicant noting that on the topo lines virtually

24

all the way down it's showing that it -- it goes

25

down into existing properties, homeowner properties
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1

and what intention they have with respect

2

they can provide us some insight as to what they

3

intend on some sort of fencing or some sort of

4

protection to the existing landowners.

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

6

MR. NUNOKAWA:

- maybe

Would the applicant please respond.
Certainly.

Thank you, Chair.

Well, as far

7

as the -- let me start with the fencing while I'm

8

still thinking through the other question.

9

know, it's always been our intention to do something

10

along that property line, and it's a little bit more

11

complicated than one might think, but after our

12

conversations with Councilmember Kane, along with a

13

couple of other parties, we just decided to make it

14

real simple.

15

The only caveat that we have is that the fence --

16

what exactly the fencing will be along the park site

17

will need to be done in conjunction with the

18

discussions with the Department of Parks and

19

Recreation, and quite frankly with the owners along

20

that boundary.

21

complicated things that we need to work through

22

as far as this body is concerned

23

response.

You

Along that border we will be fencing.

Beyond that there are some

It will be fenced.

I

I

but

that is our

Okay.

24

As far as drainage flowing from one property

25

to the next, I know that there are -- I wish Milton
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1

was still here t because he might be able to shed

2

some more light than I do.

3

existing grading rules, so to speakt is that

4

existing sheet flow is allowed to flow wherever it

5

has historically flowed.

6

you're not allowed to concentrate or add to historic

7

flows t okay.

My understanding of the

It's my understanding

Now t that said t if the body wants assurances

8
9

that we will make sure that there's some sort of a

10

berm or something along that property line to make

11

sure that it's not flowing across into those

12

existing property lines t consider it done.

13

have a problem with that.

14

our lots to drain to the street anyway.

15

that's -- I recognize Councilmember Kane's concern t

16

because quite franklYt that's a brand-new

17

subdivision being put in and I don't know if it's

18

based on their BMP isn't being followed exactly as

19

it should t or t you know t exactly how it's working t

20

but I guess what our response is that t you know, we

21

will -- we will address the issue and make sure that

22

there's something in place with regards to that.

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

24

CHAIR CARROLL:

25

recess.

We don't

We've typically graded
So if

Okay.

The Chair is going to call a five-minute
Recess.

(Gavel) .
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5:08 p.m.

1

RECESS:

2

RECONVENE:

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

4

5: 16 p.m.

7

This Land Use Committee meeting

of March 2nd, 2005 is now back in session.
Members, the floor is still open.

5
6

(Gavel).

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I guess I

8

should ask Scott, since he's standing there, he's

9

probably got the answer to this question.

Your

10

application says that you will be limiting ohana

11

units to 50 percent of the lots.

12

MR. NUNOKAWA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

MR. NUNOKAWA:

15

Yeah.

Is that a question, I mean, to us?
Yes, the question is --

So you're asking for verification that that

is the case?

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

MR. NUNOKAWA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

No, no, I'm sorry.

Okay.
I wasn't clear.

19

on your face.

20

for.

21

50 percent of the lots

22

Did you know that?

It was the look

I thought you knew what I was going

Your CC&Rs are going to limit ohana units to

MR. NUNOKAWA:

l

correct?

That is correct, as well as there is a

23

State Land Use Commission condition.

24

went through with Waiolani Elua, Council also made

25

it a condition

l

so

And when we

- and we're not opposed to that.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And can you tell me what the Land

2

Use Commission's thinking was on limiting it to 50

3

percent?

4
5

MR. NUNOKAWA:

NOt

I can't.

I meant I can tell you what

our thinking is --

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7

MR. NUNOKAWA:

Good.

on limiting it to 50 percent, but I

8

can't speak to that body.

9

done residential subdivisions for quite a few years

10

now t you know t and what I have seen is that in many

11

instances the problems -- quote t problems that

12

people relate to ohana-designated lots have a lot to

13

do with when you're in an area that has a high

14

concentration of ohana units and in an area that has

15

a limited amount of parking.

16

subdivision in Kihei once that we tried an

17

experiment where we limited the number of ohana

18

units t and in addition to that we required two

19

off-street parking stalls.

20

because obviously that's not a functional parking

21

stall.

22

we limited it and we spread out where the

23

ohana-designated lots were going to be so there was

24

no specific concentration.

25

Our -

you know t I've

And so we did a

Driveway don't count t

You had to have two stalls off streett and

This subdivision was right next to another
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1

subdivision that had no restrictions whatsoever, and

2

the -- the difference was telling.

3

very noticeable as far as what your streetscape was

4

like, what the intensity and the feeling of the two

5

projects were.

6

you wouldn't know a whole lot one way or the other

7

whether or not there were ohana units or not ohana

8

units.

9

parking -- especially in the evening time -

10

I mean, it was

You drove through one subdivision,

The other was clear.

You know, you had
up and

down all the streets.
And so we looked at it and said, you know,

11
12

there's a very compelling reason why there is an

13

ohana ordinance and why there are -- you know, ohana

14

units are allowed.

15

or, quite frankly, for a lot of people it's the only

16

way they can afford the house is they'll rent that

17

ohana unit out.

18
19

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

You either have family members

Also for a lot of people the only

housing they can afford to rent.
MR. NUNOKAWA:

Exactly.

And so for those reasons, we've

21

had people pressing us to eliminate ohana units

22

outright, and our point has always been there's a

23

purpose for this ordinance.

24

mitigate some of the

25

as negative feedback as to the unfettered use of

We're moving to

what has been provided to us
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1

ohana units.

2

that's where the thinking came from.

3
4

5

And so that's how we came up with --

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

From your point of view as far as

putting that in your CC&Rs?
MR. NUNOKAWA:

That's where we started with it with

6

Waiolani Elua, because we had significant concern

7

from the existing neighborhood, you know, from the

8

Waiolani subdivision neighborhood.

9

that was one of the big points that they had

10

11

There was a --

concerns about Waiolani Elua.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so you

- I'm assuming, and

12

please correct me, that you will be limiting the

13

ohana units to the larger lots?

14

MR. NUNOKAWA:

I think it's more locationally -- location

15

than it is specifically size of lot.

16

know, you don't want them all in one -- this area.

17

And what we tried to do with Waiolani Elua, as an

18

example, is spread it out, you know, across the

19

subdivision so there was no impact in a specific

20

area, you know, that it was concentrated in a

21

specific area.

22
23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Because, you

And so this is a condition that

the Land Use Commission imposed on you?

24

MR. NUNOKAWA:

That is correct.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay, Mr. Chair, I would like
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1

perhaps, if you could, send a communication to Corp.

2

Counsel in regards to this, because, I mean, I think

3

it's probably a good idea that it's limited to 50

4

percent.

5

provide rental housing for many people, including

6

myself, that could not otherwise afford rental

7

housing in Maui County.

8

does not provide for the limitation of ohana units

9

on residential-zoned property.

However, I do feel that ohana units

So -- and our ordinance

And we had a

10

Corporation Counsel opinion a year or so ago that

11

stated that CC&Rs cannot circumvent the zoning laws

12

of the County.

13

can't develop your own private zoning through CC&Rs.

In other words, you can't -- you

Now, perhaps the condition of the Land Use

14
15

Commission circumvents that, but I would like to

16

have an opinion from Corp. Counsel as to whether or

17

not ohana units can be limited through a condition

18

on the change in zoning either through the State

19

Land Use Commission or through the County Council

20

and through CC&Rs, because we've been told that

21

you

22

change the parameters of an existing zoning district

23

through CC&Rs.

24
25

by our own Corp. Counsel that you cannot

CHAIR CARROLL:

Okay, the Chair will ask for a written

response -
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

3

Counsel.

Thank you.

-- on your question from Corporation

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Mr. Kane.

I don't know if I heard Member

7

Johnson correctly -- excuse me, Member Anderson,

8

forgive me, I'm sorry.

9

that's why, so

Sitting next to both of them

if Member Anderson is questioning

10

whether or not we can as a part of a conditional

11

zoning that we can do this, is that part of your

12

question as well?

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yes.

Yes, that is part of her question.
That's interesting.

Okay.

I mean, I

16

guess asking for a written response -- although it

17

just seems that this body basically has the

18

authority, but if it's going to be a question -- a

19

legal question, I have no objection to the question

20

being asked.

21
22
23

CHAIR CARROLL:

I don't know if Corporation Counsel is

prepared to respond at this time.
MR. GIROUX:

Chair, can I just ask clarification about the

24

question?

I was tracking for a while and I thought

25

that the question was going to be can -
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1

something that's different from the Land Use

2

Commission, but it sounds like the question is can

3

we as a body put a condition making ohanas,

4

restricting ohanas.

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

CHAIR CARROLL:

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Mr. Chair, if I could clarify.

Please.
This just kind of came out

8

without a whole lot of thinking, so I'll try to

9

reword it.

In our current County Code there are no

10

restrictions for ohana units on residential

11

property.

12

ohana units.

13

to the size of the lot, but it allows for that in

14

our zoning ordinance.

15

Corp. Counsel I think it was maybe two years, maybe

16

three years, time flies, in regards to another CC&R

17

that was done on ag land restricting agricultural

18

uses on ag land.

19

you cannot circumvent the permitted uses in our

20

zoning ordinance through CC&Rs.

21

In other words, R-3 zoning allows for
They are restricted to size according

We received an opinion from

And the Corporation Counsel said

So in other words, what that effectuates is

22

private zoning of the land.

If they're changing the

23

permitted uses through their CC&Rs, they're changing

24

what our County Code says, in effect.

25

that changed some of the projects that were on board
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1

at that time who had CC&Rs restricting agricultural

2

uses on ag land.

3

opinion or the thought process in that opinion, in

4

that you cannot privately rezone land through CC&Rs,

5

can that also apply to conditions on zoning t not

6

just from the County Council t but from the Land Use

7

Commission?

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So I want to know can that same

Corporation Counsel.
Effectively that means through a

10

condition welre narrowing the parameters of

11

permitted uses that are in our County Code.

12

MR. GIROUX:

11m sorrYt Ms. Anderson t it must be at the

13

end of the daYt but 11m still having trouble

14

tracking the question.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

16

MR. GIROUX:

17

Can I rephrase -- I mean can I ask you the

question back and you tell me if live got it or not?

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

MR. GIROUX:

20

to respond t so
CHAIR CARROLL:

22

MR. GIROUX:

24
25

Sure.

And just tell me, because 11m going to have

21

23

1111 tell you what t I will

Proceed.

Your question is asking can the CC&Rs limit

ohana units in a subdivision; is that your question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

In part.

I want to know if CC&Rs

can limit ohana units -
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1

MR. GIROUX:

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

4

Okay.
as well as conditions of

zoning.
MR. GIROUX:

So let's just make that two questions.

Can

5

CC&Rs limit ohana units, and can the Council in its

6

conditional zoning limit ohana units.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

MR. GIROUX:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

In contradiction to County Code.

Well, I think --

10

MR. GIROUX:

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

That's the point.

I guess that would be part of the analysis.
Yeah, and I will provide your

12

office with a copy of the Corp. Counsel opinion that

13

I was referencing.

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

All right.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson.

I think add to that, and correct

17

me if I'm wrong, Ms. Anderson, but add to that can

18

the State Land Use -- you know, the State Land Use

19

Commission also compel us to violate our own laws?

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

yeah.

22

MR. GIROUX:

That was part of my question,

Can I just phrase that as can the State Land

23

Use Commission put limitations on ohana units in

24

subdivisions, I think --

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

That's fine.

Mr. Chair, if I

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

LU 3/2/05

82

1

could just -- since we spent the time on this, I'd

2

like to address the broader issue here.

3

real crisis in rental property in Maui County, as

4

well as housing that people can afford to purchase.

5

And I know that you're aware that many ohana units

6

have become vacation rentals, which depletes our

7

long-term rental market for people who live and work

8

in Maui County.

9

units, and while they may cause traffic congestion

We've got a

The County Code provides for ohana

10

and density that people don't like in their

11

neighborhood, if we begin adopting a policy that

12

contradicts the provisions in our code and we start

13

allowing people to prohibit ohana units, we're going

14

to further acerbate the problem of long-term rental

15

housing.
So if there's a problem as far as traffic

16

17

congestion, high density, then I think developers

18

need to consider that all lots in their subdivision

19

are permitted to have an ohana unit so they should

20

make the lots sizeable to accommodate for that so

21

that they can have off-street parking, and rather

22

than circumvent our County Code, to alleviate

23

congestion and traffic problems, solve the traffic

24

problems in the design of the subdivision.

25

you.
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1

CHAIR CARROLL:

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

Thank you.

Mr. Kane.

Thank you.

If I can move to another

area, Chair.

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

Proceed.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

My question has to do

6

with the Waihee Ditch and the ditch maintenance road

7

that is noted in the preliminary plans to be grass.

8

Can you give us some indication

9

the applicant.

and question's to

If you can give us some indication

10

as to what the restrictions of that -- or the --

11

first, the requirements of that maintenance road

12

with respects to I'm assuming C. Brewer, and what

13

the restrictions are as far as the use of that

14

maintenance road with respects to it being a walking

15

path and serving as what you folks are I guess

16

representing as a continuous walkway that leads over

17

to the park, Mr. Chair.

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

Applicant.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

20

MR. NUNOKAWA:

Thank you.

As far as our obligations with regards to

21

Wailuku Agribusiness, the simple answer is --

22

because there is a little bit of complication down

23

towards the north side of the property, but the

24

simple answer is that we will be reconveying the

25

property back to Wailuku Agribusiness where the
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1

ditch is and an appropriate maintenance road for the

2

property at -

3

appropriate the size is.

4

allow us a landscape maintenance easement

5

specifically for landscape only, and they made that

6

very, very clear to us, not for pedestrian, not for

7

anything else.

With -- and they will

They will not allow anything in the way of

8

9

I believe it is documented what

hardscapes, as I understand it, i.e., sidewalks,

10

walkways, that sort of thing.

They're very, very

11

touchy when it comes to the corridor of that Waihee

12

Ditch, and actually any of their agricultural ditch

13

system.

14

to create an easement situation, but part and parcel

15

to that Wailuku Agribusiness in the easement

16

document was looking for us to provide them -

17

were not providing us any indemnity from anything

18

that would happen with the ditch, and in addition to

19

that they were not providing any responsibility for

20

maintenance of the ditch.

21

giving it back to them, they have the same

22

obligation as any owner of property would have for

23

those kinds of things.

24

the parameters of

25

make it look pretty, but that's it.

And so we actually originally were trying

they

So this was the way -- by

But they made it very clear
- they'll let us grasp it and
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

And so now along with that

2

road I guess the -- what you folks are representing

3

on your map there, is that part of the two-acre park

4

site includes that long -- long portion which is I

5

guess adjacent to the Vida property

6

Vida property and the Waihee Ditch, is that correct,

7

that's part of the park component?

8
9

10

MR. NUNOKAWA:

between the

That was part of the park component that we

discussed with the Parks Department, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

Now, on that -- so what is

11

your intent on the mauka side of the ditch?

12

the maintenance road seems to be on the makai side

13

of the ditch.

14

MR. NUNOKAWA:

That will also be fenced.

Because

You know, in

15

other words, there will be some sort of fencing,

16

probably more this type of fencing where you can see

17

through, because there is a visual appeal that, you

18

know, we would try to achieve, but from a safety

19

standpoint, both sides of the ditch -

20

side of the maintenance road, you know, makai of the

21

ditch and just mauka of the -- mauka of the Waihee

22

Ditch there will also be a fence so both sides of

23

the fence -- both sides of the ditch will be fenced

24

in, so, you know --

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

on the makai

Including the maintenance road
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1

MR. NUNOKAWA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

Including the maintenance road.

fenced area?

4

MR. NUNOKAWA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

Within the fenced area, that's correct.
Okay.

So then -- so you're saying,

Mr. Chair, if I may.

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

-- will be encumbered within the

Proceed.
If this is the ditch, yeah, and the

ditch is running on both sides, you're going -- on

10

the mauka side, this is the Vida property, you're

11

going to have the fence running right against the

12

ditch, is that what you're saying?

13

MR. NUNOKAWA:

Just outside of where the parcel

14

reconveyance is.

15

ditch.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And it won't be right on the

Yeah, I understand.

Okay, so what

17

happens between where the fence is going to be and

18

the property line to the Vida property, as an

19

example?

20

MR. NUNOKAWA:

On the Vida property side we will also be

21

fencing, you know, because -- and as I mentioned

22

before, that is one portion of it that we would be

23

speaking in conjunction with the Parks Department

24

and with the property owner to make sure that

25

everybody was comfortable with what we were
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proposing.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Are you also proposing a pedestrian

walkway on the outside of the fence?
MR. NUNOKAWA:

Yeah, that's part and parcel to the reason

5

for having it there, is because we're trying to

6

maintain that flow, particularly pedestrian friendly

7

flow, from the old Waikapu neighborhood, Waiolani,

8

Waiolani Elua.

9

this park as being a mid point in what has

You know, the whole idea is to have

10

traditionally been a walking path through all of

11

Waikapu.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

So let me describe what I have

13

in my mind and what you folks are saying, if I may,

14

Mr. Chair.

15

side, you're gonna have the maintenance road inside

16

that fence, you're gonna get the ditch, then on the

17

other side -- the mauka side of the ditch there's

18

going to be another, similar to something like this,

19

you described, a low fence, and there's going to be

20

a walking path, and then there's going to be

21

additional landscaping, I'm assuming, like ground

22

cover, et cetera.

23
24
25

MR. NUNOKAWA:

You're gonna have one fence on the makai

Grass, something of that nature.

It's

relatively flat through that area.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And then there's going to be another
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fence, which is on the border of the Vida property.

2

MR. NUNOKAWA:

That is correct.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay, that's what I wanted to know,

4

kind of everything that's falling in that one

5

dogleg it looks like.

6

east, west portion of the properties, the existing

7

property owners and the park, now, I understand

8

because you talked about earlier possibly

9

reconfiguring the road because of that concern about

Finally on the -- on the

10

that long stretch coming down hill may cause a

11

vehicular speed issue.

12

about reconfiguring that road.

13

might change.

14

MR. NUNOKAWA:

So you folks are talking

Yeah, tentatively.

So the park shape

As we had mentioned,

15

it's very tentative, because the Parks Department

16

has got to be on board with it, Public Works has got

17

to be on -- I mean there's a lot of parties that

18

kind of have to be on board with this before it's

19

it is to be.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay, but the intention is to

21

maintain the park site in this general area because

22

of the flatness you talked about, the topography of

23

it?

24
25

MR. NUNOKAWA:

Well, that, in addition to conversations

with the adjacent property owners.

We specifically
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1

went and talked with the Vidas about, you know, if

2

there was going to be a park, would they prefer it

3

next to their property as a buffer or would they

4

prefer it not.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

MR. NUNOKAWA:

Yeah.

That, in conjunction with the location

7

relative to the overall subdivision, it made a lot

8

of sense.

9

It's almost like it wanted to be there.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

So my final question, because

10

you did mention -

11

us, that you will be putting a fence --

12

MR. NUNOKAWA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

and you made it very simple for

Yeah.
-- on the border of all the

14

properties, and it sounds like you're going to have

15

to have a discussion where everybody can agree, and

16

good luck on that, but for whatever you folks are

17

able to do, the fence is going to come all the way

18

down?

19

mind what you folks are doing.

20

of the Waihee Ditch point all the way up to the top

21

of old government road right-of-way, that's where

22

you folks are agreeing to also put some sort of

23

fence?

And I'm just, again, getting clarity in my

24

MR. NUNOKAWA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So from the corner

That is correct.
Okay.

Thank you.

That's what I
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wanted to find out.

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

3

MR. ALUETA:

Thank you.

Mr. Alueta.

Scott, on your plans, because now that you've

4

kind of clarified it, that you're going to maintain

5

the park, but also that Wailuku Ag doesn't want to

6

have pedestrians on their ditch road, maintenance

7

road.

8

parcel, is there a space for walking so that we can

9

connect to the next -- I don't know if I brought it

On the north side, on the park side, the last

10

up before, but is there any

11

you to put a small easement going

12

MR. NUNOKAWA:

or is there room for

That's one of the things we're looking at

13

as part of our reworking of the plan -- you know,

14

we're getting to a point now where we're getting

15

ready for preliminary subdivision submittal pending,

16

you know, this body's -- but, it is something that

17

came up in the community.

18

that as a -- you know, some sort of continuity going

19

in that direction.

20

MR. ALUETA:

21

MR. NUNOKAWA:

We will be looking at

Okay.
And like I said, it is a little bit more

22

complicated, because that section right there, we

23

have a different situation with Wailuku Ag, because

24

we have to take the road up over there.

25

working towards that.
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MR. ALUETA:

Okay, yeah, because that would make it easier

2

so that we can continue your thought or your linear

3

access with the potential next -- should you get

4

approval on this project.

5
6

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Thanks.

Members, further questions?

Ms. Anderson, followed by Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Could we have our Director of

8

Public Works come up and answer some questions

9

regarding traffic?

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

Proceed, Ms. Anderson.

11

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Mr. Arakawa, are you familiar with this

13
14

Mr. Arakawa, could you please come down.

project?

15

MR. ARAKAWA:

Yes.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Do you know if there was any -

17

it seems from what I can discern that the traffic

18

impact analysis report was basically concerned with

19

the impact on Honoapiilani Highway just as it fronts

20

the project.

21

impact on the regional roadway as it goes into

22

Wailuku and as it goes south?

23

MR. ARAKAWA:

Was there any discussion about the

I believe the study also looked at the

24

Waiko-Honoapiilani intersection as well and looked

25

at level of service there.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Right.

My concern -- I'll just

2

come to it -- is that there's -

there is very heavy

3

traffic congestion right now in fronting Wailuku

4

Elementary School coming into Wailuku during

5

commuter hours, as well as heavy congestion on

6

Honoapiilani Highway going south, particularly at

7

the North Kihei Road exit, or turn.

8

fact, the turning lane to North Kihei Road on

9

Honoapiilani Highway is -- how shall I say

As a matter of

10

overflows into the through-traffic lane all the way

11

back to the turn to Kahului on a daily basis, and I

12

see that as an extreme traffic hazard.
And I'm wondering are you in contact with

13
14

DOT?

15

have several projects coming on line in this area,

16

not just this project, but Spencer's project and

17

others, and it's only going to acerbate this

18

problem.

19

about mitigating any of this?

20

MR. ARAKAWA:

What are their plans to mitigate this?

We

So can you tell me has DOT contacted you

Councilmember John -- Anderson, sorry, I

21

have not been in contact with DOT on that, but if

22

the Committee does have a concern regarding that --

23

that or any issue relating to State highways, you

24

know, I would suggest writing to them and getting a

25

response from them.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, you know, the -

the

2

application process is pretty extensive, and here we

3

have all this documentation and we've got these big

4

regional maps for planning, but when it comes down

5

to making the decision and putting something on the

6

ground, we're not looking at things regionally.

7

This doesn't make sense.

8

Department's responsibility and the Planning

9

Department's responsibility in their analysis of

10

these projects to look at the cumulative impacts

11

regionally on our roadways.

12

doing that, we're not going to solve our traffic

13

problems.

14

the problem we currently have.

15

I think it's the

And unless you start

We're only going to continue to acerbate

So, Mr. Chair, I think that's a big hole in

16

this application.

And, you know, all due respect to

17

the applicants, they're not the only ones that are

18

causing this problem.

19

them off for some time, but the problem exists right

20

now, and we've got several projects that have been

21

approved that aren't on line yet.

22

that somebody, the Planning Department or Public

23

Works, could contact DOT, find out what's happening,

24

what their plans are, if they have any, are they

25

even aware of the problem.

And, you know, water may hold

So I would hope
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1

To me, the fact that the turn lane to North

2

Kihei Road is overflowing all the way into the

3

through lane is an extreme traffic hazard.

4

surprised there hasn't been some serious accidents,

5

and I'd like to see us address this.

6

roadway, and if we only look at things that are

7

right in front of us and don't look at the

8

cumulative impacts of what we're approving, we're

9

being irresponsible.

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

12

I'm

It's our

Ms. Johnson.
Yes, and first could I ask a

question of you, Scott?

13

MR. NUNOKAWA:

Certainly.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Because I've been reading through

15

these conditions, and I think Ms. Anderson brought

16

out a very good point about, you know, what

17

prevails, CC&Rs or ordinances

18

good, but one of the conditions I noticed that they

19

imposed at the State Land Use level was it's stated

20

within seven days of the issuance of the

21

Commission's decision and order you should record

22

with the Bureau of Conveyances, you know, for all

23

these recordation of conditions, and have you done

24

that already?

25

MR. NUNOKAWA:

I

so I think that's

Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, and that's in our packet as

well?
MR. NUNOKAWA:

I do not believe it is in your packet, but

4

what we provided to Council, because we just figured

5

we should, you know, was the executed decision and

6

order, but as far as the actual recordation is

7

concerned, no, we did not.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
and I -

Okay.

And then along with that

Corporation Counsel is writing away, but

10

what my question is also is let's say, for example,

11

that we find that there are inconsistencies in

12

perhaps some of these conditions

13

with State Land Use Commission, and I know Ms. Lemn

14

has basically stated

15

relieved from some of these conditions.

16

would be if these conditions have already been

17

recorded with the Bureau of Conveyances

18

contradict State Land Use Commission and basically

19

unrecord them because we view things differently?

20

MS. LEMN:

Chairperson.

t

t

or we don't agree

well, we would like to be
My question

t

can we then

Councilmember Johnson, I just

21

wanted to clarify, we weren't looking of being

22

relieved of the State Land Use Commission by you.

23

We were looking just to deal with that condition at

24

the State Land Use Commission level, as versus

25

dealing with it -- a State issue at State Land Use
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1

Commission and with the DOT and at the County level

2

as well.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So in other words, you have

4

actually recorded it and then you would comply with

5

whatever their requirements are, then, Haunani, at

6

the State level?

7

MS. LEMN:

We would comply or we would need to return to

8

them to further discuss conditions if they prove to

9

be unworkable.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

11

MS. LEMN:

12

13

Okay.

Or as you so noted, in the event that those

conditions were not being fairly applied.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And I guess, then, again, if they

14

agree to the conditions, then it would seem to me,

15

Mr. Chair, that that's something they would agree to

16

even though it may be a little bit different from

17

our laws or policies.

18

if you have like a voluntary -

19

agreement, but I guess my question, then, to

20

Corporation Counsel would be if we find that there

21

are any things that are inconsistent but they've

22

already recorded it with the Bureau of Conveyances,

23

how do we address that issue, or are you not

24

prepared to answer at this time?

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

So if they agree, it's almost
or an involuntary

Corporation Counsel.
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MR. GIROUX:

I'm not sure.

I'd probably have to do a

2

little research on that

3

we're getting into some kind of preemption and that

4

kind of stuff.

5

actually answer it today.

6

l

because it sounds like

So I wouldn't be prepared to

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And thank you very much

7

and I would like at least some response in that

8

regard

9

the fact that

Mr. Chair.

l

l

And to you

you know

I

l

Milton

I

because of

l

we've got the Kihei side

10

backing

UPI

11

pointed

OUtl

12

exit Kaohu Street from the County property and we

13

go -- if you're going right

I

and there's many people

14

going right

l

you know

15

uS I including Mr. FoleYI who go left.

16

get out of Kaohu Street.

17

impossible.

18

Department viewing all of the unintended

19

consequences of all of the development

20

this development, but all of the cumulative impacts

21

all along this corridor and the way it operates?

22

Because

23

just backing up and creating more problems in

24

another point.

25

l

CHAIR CARROLL:

it's a regional issue

I

l

as Ms. Anderson

my other problem is even when we go to

there are also

a number of

I

You cannot

I meanl it's just

So how are we looking -- or how is your

I

not just

you know, if it backs up in one point, it's

Mr. Arakawa.
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MR. ARAKAWA:

Councilmember Johnson, like I mentioned, if

2

there are specific operational problems at specific

3

intersections, we can certainly bring them to DOT's

4

attention so that they can address it, but I believe

5

the regional map that Director Foley presented

6

earlier, at least presents a view point as to how

7

these types of regional traffic issues are intended

8

to be addressed, and I think it's a positive plan.

9

We have of course with the Spencer development, the

10

Waiale Road extension being put in, which is going

11

to provide more capacity for traffic in this

12

regional area.

13

and of course the Maui Lani Parkway improvements,

14

which are, you know, in the queue, as the

15

development in Maui Lani proceeds.

16

And there's also Kuikahi extension,

And of course with this particular

17

developments here there's been talk about extending

18

Old Waikapu Road to connect up to Kuikahi, which is

19

also another positive development in the sense that

20

it does provide additional capacity in this area and

21

provides for additional capability for internal

22

circulation within the regional area.

23

there's a lot of positive things going on, but like

24

I said, if there are specific operational concerns

25

that are occurring today, either the Committee can
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1

ask DOT to address that or t you know t we can

2

certainly do that from our end as well.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Do you have any kind of

4

time line t then, for when that upper roadwaYt you

5

know t or the

6

the -- is the old highwaYt that is the dotted line;

7

that's correct?

- let's say the old highway -- now is

8

MR. ARAKAWA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

10

11

Yes t with the red dots t yes.
You don't know when that would be

planned for connection?
MR. ARAKAWA:

At this point it's pretty much a conceptual

12

alignment t and I think as I mentioned at the site

13

inspection t it's an old government road.

14

to establish ownership of that road and then of

15

course then we'd have to seek funding for the road.

16

So there still are a number of steps in which to

17

proceed in order to bring it to realitYt but I guess

18

the -

19

the extension of that Old Waikapu Road actually

20

should respond to future land use in that area.

21

mean if there is going to be future development in

22

that areat then of course the road

23

the road becomes more acute.

24

Plan update coming

25

idea as to what's the long term outlook for this

We'd have

the point I want to make is that t you know t

UPt

- the need for

And with the General

it will give us a clearer
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1

area and then we can plan roadway projects

2

accordingly.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, and I know that the traffic

4

impact fee ordinance was principally designed as a

5

result of legislation that affects South and West

6

Maui, but because the study was basically done or

7

the transportation planning model was done to

8

include other areas of Maui County, do you see any

9

money coming through that ordinance or through the

10

enactment of that ordinance to pay for these kinds

11

of improvements as opposed to just simply having

12

government pay for the roadway improvements and then

13

putting it on all of the taxpayers?

14

MR. ARAKAWA:

Councilmember Johnson, I believe that's an

15

open question at this point.

16

bill is up at the Council, and I think there's -

17

it's still subject to deliberation, but the intent

18

of the traffic impact fee is basically to collect

19

the pro rata share from developments for regional

20

traffic improvements.

21

implemented, it will be a positive for both the

22

State and the County, I believe, in terms of trying

23

to get regional traffic improvements implemented.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

The traffic impact fee

So if it can be equitably

Okay, are you aware, then -

you

know, and I don't know the answer to the question,
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1

but basically when you were at the Planning

2

Commission, I noted that in other applications we've

3

had recommendations stating that if and when a

4

traffic impact fee ordinance is adopted by the

5

Council, that there would be a requirement for

6

participation on the part of an applicant.

7

also contained in this or is this one different?

8

Because I didn't find that specific condition, but I

9

did see that they were required to participate in

Is that

10

the construction of the -- or at least in the

11

erection of that light.

12

MR. ARAKAWA:

Councilmember Johnson, I believe most of the

13

projects which the Commission added that particular

14

condition were either in West Maui or South Maui,

15

and it may not have been levied on this particular

16

project because it was -- you know, this project is

17

in Central Maui.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

MR. ARAKAWA:

Okay.

But the -- but the standard condition that

20

the Commission did impose said that the traffic

21

impact fee will apply if it's in effect prior to

22

obtaining a certificate of occupancy for the

23

development itself.

24

development proceeded and there was -

25

a certificate of occupancy and there was no traffic

So, therefore, if the
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1

impact fee in effect, then basically, you know, the

2

developer would not pay the fee.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

But there's no requirement

4

that either you or Mr. Alueta are aware of that was

5

tied to this particular project?

6

MR. ARAKAWA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

10
11

No .
Okay, thank you.

Thank you.

Members?

Ms. Tavares,

followed by Mr. Pontanilla, or Mr. Pontanilla,
followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

You know, Mr. Chairman, I know

12

that these all are topics that are very, very

13

interesting and relevant when we're discussing about

14

regional traffic, housing.

15

had to smile with Ms. Anderson wanting to have ohana

16

housing and then the next issue was about traffic.

17

I think that these are interesting topics, but I

18

don't believe that we should hold this project

19

hostage because of them, and that the discussions

20

regarding these things should be going on

21

appropriately in the Committee that it's appropriate

22

for.

23

I mean, I -- I kind of

I know that the impact fees for traffic I

24

think is in my Committee.

And, Members, we're going

25

to have to get down to brass tax and decide what's
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important to us here.

2

of time dealing with issues that don't have a great

3

impact on the County as some of the ones that we

4

feel,

5

spend those times -- or our time doing those things.

6

And if we spend a whole lot

like housing and impact fees, we've got to

I'm concerned

and maybe because I'm a

7

short-timer I'm panicking.

You know, I only got 20

8

months left -

9

about, gosh, are we going to get the things done

or actually 19, and so I'm worried

10

that we need to do.

11

doing some of those -- those -

12

ordinances that are going to really impact our

13

future, and then I can say I had something to do

14

with it, but that we help our community in what

15

we're doing.

16

And I would like to be part of
passing some of the

So I think that a project like this has gone

17

through a whole lot of review.

18

you know, really valid ones and stuff, but at this

19

point, Mr. Chair, I'm ready to act on this

20

particular application and move forward.

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

The questions are,

Thank you, Ms. Tavares.

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla.

Chair, I just was going to ask you

23

for a brief recess so we can take some (inaudible)

24

relieving.

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Five-minute recess.

(Gavel) .
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5:58 p.m.

1

RECESS:

2

RECONVENE:

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

6: 03 p.m.

(Gavel).

This Land Use Committee meeting

4

of March 2nd, 2005 is now back in session.

5

further discussion?

6

Chair to give his recommendation.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

Any

There's been a request for the

Recommendation.

Thank you.

The Chair will entertain a

motion to recommend passage on first reading of the

10

revised proposed bill -- and that is the bill that

11

you all have before you dated today

12

proposed bill entitled A Bill for an Ordinance to

13

Amend the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan and Land

14

Use Map from Public/Quasi-Public to Single-Family

15

for Property situated at Waikapu, Maui, Hawaii.

16

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

So moved.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Second.

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

19
20

- the revised

Been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, seconded by

Ms. Tavares.

Discussion, Mr. Pontanilla.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

I just wanted

21

to commend the Nunokawas for coming up with a

22

project like this for the people of Maui County.

23

can recall when I purchased my piece of land that I

24

had my family and friends help me build that home,

25

and this is one way that we truly can have some kind
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1

of an affordable housing when you do have sweat

2

equity.

3

with the number of lots that is being provided, if

4

you go through the self-help housing or sweat

5

equity, again, you know, you can build a pretty good

6

size home for a family of four at a reasonable cost.

7

You ask any contractor in regards to building a home

8

on an empty lot, today's environment, it's not the

9

home that costs money.

10
11

Also, in regards to the housing policy,

It's the ground that you put

that home on.
So, again, to the Nunokawas, you know, for

12

coming up with this particular project here.

13

was hoping that when Mr. Foley gave us this very

14

creative plan, that some dates would have been, you

15

know, put on them so at least we get a fairly good

16

idea, you know, how the traffic flow would be

17

interconnecting not only between -- within Waikapu

18

but also how it does involve Wailuku as well as

19

Kahului.

20

you very much, Chair.

So it's a step going forward.

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.

And I

So thank

Ms. Tavares.

Yeah, Mr. Chair, I understand that

the motion was for only one bill; is that correct?

24

CHAIR CARROLL:

Correct.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

May I amend the main motion, then,
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1

by offering that we include the next bill, which is

2

the bill for an ordinance to change zoning from the

3

Ag District to R-2 Residential District conditional

4

zoning for property situated at Waikapu, Maui(

5

Hawaii and the filing of the communication?

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

10

Second.

Been moved by Ms. Tavares, seconded by -Mike.

-- Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Discussion, Ms. Tavares.

Thank you.

No discussion.

I echo

11

what Mr. Pontanilla was saying{ and I think that as

12

soon as we can get more housing affordable and

13

projects like this off the ground and running, the

14

better we're going to be in this County, and we'll

15

just have to deal with all the impacts that come

16

with it and hopefully work through those traffic

17

impacts, the housing policies and all of that in our

18

different committees and really we have to dedicate

19

ourselves to that so that we don't spend as much

20

time on a single application that we do now because

21

so many things are nebulous.

22
23

24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Further discussion on the

amendment to the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.

Ms. Anderson.

Mr. Chair, I'd like to ask if we

are making a motion to combine the community plan
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amendment and the change in zoning in one motion?

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

4

5
6

We are.

conditions to the change in zoning?
CHAIR CARROLL:

No, it does not.

It does not prohibit us

from adding any conditions to change of zoning.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

10

Does that prohibit us to adding

Point of --

Point of order, Mr. Kane.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I

Yeah, so
- just to help along, with this

11

amendment, if this amendment is approved, once

12

this is approved, we go back to the main motion,

13

then it makes it very simple to add on conditions

14

onto specific bills.

15

incorporating into one motion, and the amendment is

16

simply to add it.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

All we're doing now is

I understand.

Yeah, yeah, so
If we make

if we make

20

amendments to the main motion, then we have to

21

specify that they're specific amendments to the

22

change in zoning.

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

if

Okay, thank you.

When you make the amendment to the main

24

motion, you specify whether it is the bill for an

25

ordinance to amend the Kahului community plan or the
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residential conditional zoning.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

That's all.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

It's just the same.

Any further

4

discussion on the amendment?

5

those in favor of the motion, signify by saying

6

"aye. "

7

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

VOTE: AYES:

10
11
12
13

14
15
16

NOES:
EXC.:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Hearing none, all

Aye.
Opposed?
Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Kane,
Mateo, Molina, Tavares, Vice-Chair
Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmember Hokama.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR CARROLL:

Motion carried.

At this time I would like -- I would

17

entertain a motion to amend -- on the second to the

18

last page of the documents distributed to you on

19

March 2nd, you have the conditions of zoning.

20

Condition No. 5 I would ask for an amendment to --

21

and this is for the bill for an ordinance to change

22

zoning from Agricultural District to R-2 Residential

23

District conditional zoning for property situated at

24

Waikapu, Maui, Hawaii to add affordable before

25

housing.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Second -- so moved.

2

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Second.

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

4
5

Been moved by Ms. Tavares, seconded by

Mr. Pontanilla.

Discussion, Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Only discussion, I think that

6

makes it real clear that that's the intent.

7

sure the intent was already there, but this makes it

8

even more clear.

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Further discussion?

10

none.

11

main motion, signify by saying "aye."
COUNCIL MEMBERS:

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

14

VOTE: AYES:

15

17
18

19

NOES:
EXC. :
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Aye.
Opposed?
Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Kane,
Mateo, Molina, Tavares, Vice-Chair
Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmember Hokama.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

20

CHAIR CARROLL:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24

25

Hearing

All those in favor of the amendment to the

12

16

I'm

Motion carried.

Members, discussion?

More amendments?

Any amendments?
Mr. Chairman, what were you

reading from?
CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
from?

What exactly were you reading

Because--

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

Pardon?

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I'm looking at the second to the

5

last page and I don't see the same thing you're

6

reading from.

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

On the document distributed to you.

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

Oh, I'm sorry.

Today's document, March 2nd, 2005, the two

10

revised bills from Corporation Counsel.

11

to the last page you will see --

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

14

Right.

The second

Okay, thank you.

conditions of zoning.

And we added

affordable.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

17

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman.

I'm sorry, Mr. Mateo.
Chairman, just for clarification,

18

because we already voted, but the offering you just

19

made insofar as putting the word affordable before

20

the word housing, what difference does it make,

21

since this project is just lots?

22

CHAIR CARROLL:

Because this over here, Condition 5, is

23

that the affordable housing units shall be

24

intermixed.

25

be intermixed with the market price house lots, but

The way it had, the housing units shall
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1

it doesn't say what housing units.

2

it very clear that it is affordable housing units

3

that will be intermixed.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

It's just making

It's just a clarification.

Some -- Chairman, I'm sorry.

I

5

still don't get it, because -- because the project

6

does not deal with housing units.

7

lots, so I don't know how number

8

dealing with number 5 by making specific

9

recommendations that it is word specific affordable

The project is
- why we're

10

housing units when the project does not deal with

11

affordable housing units.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

MR. ALUETA:

15

CHAIR CARROLL:

16

MR. ALUETA:

It deals with lots.

Can I -Mr. Chair.

Mr. Chair, if I may.
Mr. -

yes, Mr. Alueta.

At the time, Scott Nunokawa, when he came in

17

when we drafted the conditions, came out of the

18

Planning Commission, he was unsure whether he was

19

going to do lots only.

20

thought of doing some houses at the time.

21

probably the reason, but you can probably -- you can

22

change it to say affordable housing/lot units,

23

similar to -- because it says priced lots/units with

24

market priced lots/houses, so just -- that the

25

affordable -- affordable lots/housing units shall be

He was entertaining the
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1

intermixed with the market priced lots/housing --

2

houses.

3
4

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

Would you care to make such a motion,

Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

6

Mr. Alueta said.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10
11

CHAIR CARROLL:

I do, and it's exactly what

Second.

Do I have a second?
Second.

Seconded by Ms. Tavares.

Discussion,

Mr. Mateo?

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

No discussion.

Thank you.

Further discussion?

All those

14

in favor of the motion, please signify by saying

15

"aye. "

16

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

18

VOTE: AYES:

19
20
21
22
23

NOES:
EXC. :
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Aye.
Motion -- all those opposed?
Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Kane,
Mateo, Molina, Tavares, Vice-Chair
Pontanilla, and Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmember Hokama.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

24

CHAIR CARROLL:

Motion carried.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

Mr. Chair.
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1

CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms. Tavares.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, Mr. Chair

l'd like to amend

l

3

the conditions of zoning

l

the ones that we're still

4

talking about.

1

that the applicant shall

5

contribute to the development of funding

6

having to do with the schools.

Number 6

l

et cetera

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I move to delete Condition No.6.

9

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Second.

10
11
12

CHAIR CARROLL:

l

Proceed.

Been moved by Ms. Tavares

Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Discussion

l

I

seconded by

Ms. Tavares.

Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair.

I

13

believe that it was confirmed that this condition is

14

part of the State Land Use Commission conditions and

15

it being the -- I don't think we need it twice.

16

We -- you know

17

that's going to bel because it already is included

18

as a condition that they must meet.

19

signed the agreements for that

20

think it's unnecessary for us to have it here

21

it does deal with a State function also.

22
23
24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:

I

they have to comply with whatever

Thank you.

l

They've already

so I don't -- I
l

since

Further discussion?

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

My question would be, because we

know that the State is notorious for not enforcing
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1

if we do not put this condition in and the State

2

does not enforce, what recourse do we have?

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

I think I would say the recourse would be

4

to make sure that if the State doesn't do their job,

5

that we would go over there and petition the State

6

to do what they're supposed to do.

7

problem with us taking over the State's

8

responsibilities.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I have a real

I understand that, but my concern

10

is -- and I understand Ms. Lemn's point too, that,

11

wellt this is something that's a relationship with

12

the State.

13

However, what has ended up happening many times at

14

the County level, we make recommendations or we make

15

suggestions, but my pure and simple point is here,

16

if the State fails to enforce, do we then by

17

eliminating this particular condition have no

18

ability to enforce the condition if it's also not

19

if it's not a mirror of what their condition is.

20

we give up that responsibility?

We shouldn't become embroiled in it.

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Do

Ms. Tavares.
Can I ask Ms. Johnson a question?

23

If we leave this condition in and it is part of our

24

conditions, how do we enforce it?

25

enforcing something that's a State responsibility?

How do you see us
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1

We make them give us the cash and we'll build a

2

school or --

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

The manner in which I see

4

enforcement going on is that it's compliance.

5

at any point in time when a particular development

6

is moving forward, permits can be pulled or

7

suspended from the County level if there's failure

8

to comply.

9

understanding.

10

So if

The State cannot do that, from my

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I would defer to Planning

11

Department or Public Works Department.

12

don't quite see the connection.

13

conditions in, but we have no recourse really.

14

know, to put it in our condition of zoning, where

15

does that leave the applicant if the Department of

16

Education hasn't said anything or the State hasn't

17

said anything and then we're going to not give them

18

a permit because the State has failed to do

19

something?

20

square going around and around with the State.

21

I don't

I

We can put these
You

You know, we're still back at the same

I mean, to me it's almost as if we see that

22

something isn't happening that should and it has

23

happened, that, you know, we've got to either

24

improve our relationship with the State or

25

something.

Maybe it's going to take a Council
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1

resolution to get the State to move in the direction

2

they're supposed to, appeal to the Governor or

3

appeal to the Board of Education or something.

4

know that we can withhold building permits or

5

grading permits or whatever if conditions aren't met

6

or whatever

7

I still -- or it's the building permits.

8

don't think it's fair to the development to be held

9

accountable for something they have no control over.

I

- whatever's going to trigger this, but

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

CHAIR CARROLL:

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I just

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Anderson.
Thank you.

In regards to

13

conditions such as these that the Land Use

14

Commission imposes, we attached a whole list of Land

15

Use Commission conditions to the Makena change in

16

zoning, and I feel that the County is the entity

17

that is on the ground with the developer in their

18

in their process after the change in zoning, after

19

the Land Use Commission, it's the County who issues

20

the building permits, who sends out the inspectors,

21

and it's the County who enforces the conditions of

22

the change in zoning.

23

And if these conditions of change in zoning

24

are also conditions that the Land Use Commission has

25

imposed or are conditions that a State agency has to
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1

follow through on, then the County could compel the

2

State agency by letting them know that the next

3

phase of this project is not going forward until

4

this condition has been met, and that would force

5

DOT or Department of Education to do their part to

6

determine what the pro rata share might be so that

7

we have some assurance at the County level that we

8

are getting our fair share from them.

9

So I think it's appropriate if we want to

10

make sure that these conditions are followed

11

through, it becomes part of a unilateral agreement,

12

it's deeded with the land, and should someone sell

13

the land, it runs with the land.

14

the future everybody knows, including the County,

15

what the conditions are.

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

Further discussion?

17

the floor.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR CARROLL:

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And that way in

We have a motion on

Mr. Chairman.

Ms. Tavares.
I'm not asking that all conditions

21

put on by the State Land Use Commission shouldn't be

22

put into our County conditions for the reasons I

23

agree with Ms. Anderson, that that gives us better

24

oversight and allows us to be in a position to

25

enforce some of them.

It's this specific condition
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1

that I'm talking about that has to do with the

2

construction of school facilities and fair share t

3

that's -- that's the condition that I think that we

4

are very limited in what our recourse iS

5

are going to penalize a development or penalize the

6

people who would otherwise be able to move into

7

these homes or start building their homes because

8

the Department of Education hasn't acted

9

think that's the part that's unfair.

and yet we

t

and I

t

And

you know

t

10

I wouldn't -- I wouldn't want to carry this out for

11

all conditions of

12

the State Land Use Commission t but I think in this

13

particular instance it is reasonable to ask that

14

this be deleted.

15

CHAIR CARROLL:

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

- you know

t

t

that are put on by

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Chair.

Any further -- Mr. Molina.
Thank you t Chairman.

I think both

19

sides have a good point.

20

proposed amendment t but maybe in the meantime t

21

should this matter pass out of Committee

22

some type of written opinion

23

Corporation Counselor the State just to clarify the

24

matter so

25

get

t

I'm willing to support the

t

t

we can get

whether it be from our

- just to ensure that

you know

t

you know

t

we don't

short changed or vice versa

t

and at

t
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1

the same time people have the opportunity to move

2

into these homes.

3

get some assurances, to get a clear written

4

statement from, you know, whichever authority, you

5

know, is the appropriate one to respond to this

6

particular matter, point of discussion here today.

7

Thank you.

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So just for everyone's sake to

Thank you.

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

11

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you.

I'm looking at the

12

Department of -- State of Hawaii, the Land Use

13

Commission report here, and if Corp. Counsel can

14

turn to page 42 and explain to me Item No.4, if

15

that would be suffice in regards to getting the Maui

16

County zoning approval?

17

MR. GIROUX:

May I respond?

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

19

MR. GIROUX:

Corporation Counsel.

I'm looking at page 42, Number 4, public

20

school facilities, and it reads t

"Petitioner shall

21

work with the State Department of Education, DOE,

22

relative to any fair share contributions.

23

the contribution shall be agreed upon in writing by

24

the petitioner and the DOE prior to obtaining County

25

of Maui rezoning."

Terms of

And so my understanding is that
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1

they have already entered into the written agreement

2

and that this -- their State permit is conditioned

3

upon them working out that fair share.

4

to cover the issue of the fair share contribution to

5

the State system.

6

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

So it seems

Thank you.

Further discussion?

Ms. Johnson.

If I'm reading the condition

correctly, though, it says it shall be agreed upon

10

in writing by the petitioner and the DOE prior to

11

obtaining County of Maui rezoning.

12

our packet?

13
14

15

MR. GIROUX:

So -- that's in

I believe that they had made representations

that they had submitted that already.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

No, they're shaking their heads

16

that they have not done that.

17

process of negotiation, so --

18

MR. GIROUX:

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

They're in the

Oh, I stand corrected.
And, Mr. Chair, I just have a

20

problem, then, because it says prior to us acting or

21

prior to their obtaining their rezoning, we're

22

supposed to be presented with this.

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

I think all the members are clear of the

24

pros and cons of the motion on the floor.

25

anything new to add?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Well, Mr. Chair, what my bigger

2

concern is is that if this is a condition, are we

3

going to ignore it in just taking up the proposal

4

and moving forward?

5

condition prior to obtaining County of Maui

6

rezoning, we are in the process of rezoning.

7

don't care whether this is an amendment or not, it's

8

a condition.

9
10

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Because if it says it's a

And I

Chair, we still need to go

first -- okay, I'm sorry.

11

CHAIR CARROLL:

Mr. Pontanilla.

12

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

On this matter here we still need

13

to go to first reading and second reading to approve

14

this project, so what I'm trying to say is that for

15

the developer and the DOE, in order for them to

16

comply with Number 4, that prior to final second

17

reading that this agreement should be in hand -- or

18

must be in hand.

19

CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms. Tavares.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, Mr. Chair, I was going to

21

say the same thing he's saying.

We're not approving

22

the zoning here in this Committee.

23

referring it to the full Council.

24

applications that came before us when there's

25

unilateral agreements that have to be signed, there

We're just
And like other
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1

still has to be agreements signed for this! that!

2

you know! prior to -- or prior to first reading or

3

second reading those agreements have to be executed

4

before we as a Council can actually have an action

5

on the application.

6
7

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

motion on the floor.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

10

Further discussion?

We have a

Mr. Kane.

I yield to Ms. Anderson.

Mr. Kane has yielded to Ms. Anderson.

Ms. Anderson.

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I'll yield back to Mr. Kane.

Mr. Chair! thank you.

Mr. Kane.
I can see the point that's being

15

requested or the amendment to remove it! and I think

16

the basis of the request by the applicant early this

17

afternoon

18

was placed as a condition from the Planning

19

Commission because it was not finalized at State

20

Land Use.

21

been finalized at State Land Use.

22

or earlier this afternoon was that this

That's my understanding.

It has since

I guess what I'm hearing from Member

23

Anderson! and I'm having a tendency to agree with

24

the point that she's making! and maybe we can get

25

confirmation from the Planning Department or Public
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1

Works, is that specifically this condition is saying

2

that you've got to have the agreement in hand for

3

the contribution before you get your building

4

permit.

5

is -- can we -- if this stays on the County zoning

6

here -- in other words, this amendment fails, that

7

forces the Nunokawas to have it in hand prior to

8

allowing any building permits; is that correct?

9
10
11

That's what it's saying.

CHAIR CARROLL:

Planning Department, Mr. Alueta or --

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I mean, that's how I'm reading the

Condition No.6.

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

13

MR. ALUETA:

14

And I want to ask

Mr. Alueta or Mr. Foley.

That is correct, but they would have to get

an agreement --

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16

MR. ALUETA:

That's what I said.

-- prior -- if you move forward, if you keep

17

it on, right, and you move forward, we still are

18

going to be stuck at first reading or second reading

19

because they would have to get this agreement

20

complied with prior to change in zoning, and then

21

again we would double check to make sure prior to

22

building permit that they have agreed upon --

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

So that's what I'm trying to

24

get clarity now.

Because then Mr. Pontanilla

25

brought up the point of Number 4 on page 42, talking
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1

about it cannot get rezoning until that has been

2

done; is that correct?

3

the dots, Chair, so bear with me.

4

MR. ALUETA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I'm just trying to connect

Unless you choose to move forward.
Okay.

So my point being is

so if

6

this motion fails -- if this motion fails and it

7

remains here, if what Mr. Pontanilla brought

8

forward, does that make this condition moot because

9

we cannot pass it anyway because of what's talked

10

about in the findings of fact, conclusions of law

11

that was pointed out by Mr. Pontanilla?

12

some clarity.

13

appreciate helping us through this.

14

the amendment, Chair.

15

MR. FOLEY:

Provide us

And, Mr. Foley, if you can, I'd
And this is on

Mr. Chairman, it sounds to me like the

16

rezoning -- change in zoning couldn't be complete

17

without our seeing evidence that there is an

18

agreement in place between the applicants and DOE.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

20

MR. FOLEY:

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay, and so let me -- let me -

Yes, it would render the other condition moot.
Okay.

So because of that, then it

22

seems -- it seems like a reasonable amendment

23

request to have it deleted because it's already

24

required here prior to us getting the zoning done.

25

And that's how I see it, unless I can be convinced
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1

that it would be a necessary hammer to hold in

2

making sure that you have some sort of agreement

3

prior to us passing -- prior to us, you know!

4

allowing a building permit to go through, as an

5

example.

So I yield the floor.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Anderson.
Thank you.

The fact that the

State Land Use Commission imposed this condition

10

requiring DOE and the petitioner, the applicant, to

11

agree on a contribution in writing prior to

12

obtaining change in zoning from the County

13

didn't happen.

14

zoning, and so I -- I think that the Condition No. 6

15

in our change in zoning gives them another chance to

16

get this done prior to a building permit.

that

Here we are working on the change in

I don't know that it's our job to enforce

17

18

conditions that the Land Use Commission put in

19

place, but, you know, it's their conditions and

20

DOE

21

the applicant, what were the discussions with DOE

22

from the time December 14th that these conditions

23

were imposed by Land Use Commission and now.

24

thought I heard in the discussion that they already

25

made an agreement, but they're shaking their heads

I wish we had a chance to discuss this with
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that they hadn't.

2

So I think that this Condition 6 protects us.

3

Because if we don't have itt they can go back to the

4

Land Use Commission and saYt wellt the County didn't

5

require us to do itt so please amend this t and next

6

thing you know we don't have any condition for a

7

contribution at all.

8

that we would keep Condition 6 in, require DOT [sic]

9

and the applicant to come up with an agreement prior

So I would -- I would hope

10

to a building permitt then everybody's assured that

11

there is a fair share contribution.

12
13
14

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Further discussion?

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Chairman, I've already spoken

15

twice on the issue regarding the amendment.

16

for the question.

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

I call

We are voting on the amendment to the main

18

motion, which is to remove Number 6 from the

19

conditions of zoning in Exhibit 2.

20

favor of the motion, please signify by saying "aye."

21

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

22

CHAIR CARROLL:

23

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

All those in

Aye.
Opposed?
No.
Chair, how did you vote?

Aye.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

5

6

Roll call.

Roll call.

showing of hands for the vote.
CHAIR CARROLL:

All those in favor of the motion, signify

by saying

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

10

opposed.

11

aye 11

--

No, raising your hand.

-- or raising your hand.

All those

Councilmembers Mateo, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Chair
Carroll.
Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and
Kane.
Councilmember Hokama.
None.
None.

VOTE: AYES:

12

NOES:
13
14

I will

Chair, we can make a request for just

7

11

Can we have a hand?

EXC. :
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

15

MOTION CARRIED.
16

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

ACTION:
17
18
19

CHAIR CARROLL:

Let the motion show we have five ayes,

three noes.

Motion is carried.

Back to the main motion on the floor.

20
21

Further discussion?

We have the main motion on the

22

floor, the two bills in document distributed to you

23

March 2nd, 2005, and that is included with

24

Mr. Kane's motion of filing of County Communication

25

04-295.

Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair, I'll speak in favor

2

in support of the motion as amended to move this

3

forward to the full Council, and realizing that

4

prior to our action for a change in zoning we must

5

have that agreement between the DOE and the

6

applicant.

7

I will vote no if we don't have that agreement, but

8

I think this allows the project to move forward to a

9

point where they can actually come before us with

And if we vote for a change in zoning

10

their agreement in hand and we can move on the

11

change in zoning at that time.

12

I'm sorry that we

I maybe got a little

13

testy on this, but this has been a long meeting

14

without a dinner break, which should have been an

15

hour and a half ago, and I hope that we're -- we can

16

continue to move these kinds of applications along,

17

as it does bring in housing that we are crying about

18

we want.

19

projects and ask the body to please move these along

20

so that we can provide some much needed homes for

21

our people.

22

So I'm going to continue to look at these

So I think that the conditions will be met

23

that have to be met prior to the change in zoning,

24

and maybe it's not just this one, maybe there's some

25

other ones.

And from what I understand, we are
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1

responsible for seeing that the State Land Use

2

Commission conditions are complied with in an

3

application.

4

incorrect, somebody will correct me, but that's what

5

I've been assuming all these years.

6

CHAIR CARROLL:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

That's my understanding.

And if I'm

Thank you.

Mr. Kane.
Thank you, Chair.

I'll be supporting

8

the main motion as amended.

Personally I didn't

9

it wasn't a priority -- or it wasn't really

10

important to me on that latest amendment, so, you

11

know, it wasn't a big deal for me personally.

12

so either way, you know, it's fine to me.

And

13

However, what I would like to note is that

14

there are other things that we have not put on as

15

conditions that

16

that are important, and that is making sure that

17

there is a sensitivity of the applicant to the

18

existing landowners who reside in their areas, some

19

of them for generations, over a hundred years.

20

I know both Scott and Haunani personally, and I know

21

that they've demonstrated through their actions in

22

their previous project, as well as Haunani being one

23

Kauai girl, you know, I trust that what they've told

24

us and have represented in these meetings that are a

25

matter of public record, that they will be working

that I did state in my comments
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1

with sensitivity to the people that will be directly

2

impacted, the adjacent properties.

3

So I think the discussion regarding the

4

actual fencing adjacent to those properties is very

5

important.

6

know that, and I will also encourage them, as

7

they've stated on public record, that they continue

8

engaging with those neighbors to make sure that

9

everything is all good and working with them.

And I just want to -- I want them to

And

10

they've done that in the past, and I know they're

11

going to continue.

12

With that, I concur with the comments that

13

Member Tavares has stated.

14

you know, there's a need out there.

15

Mr. Pontanilla pointed out, and was reiterated by

16

the applicant, that this is something that's going

17

to work well for gap group people that are not in

18

the market but not in the affordable and it's going

19

to provide some housing for them.

20

start moving on some of these projects.

21

This is something that,
I think

And we need to

There are a few concerns of traffic, and I

22

will note, again, on the record that ever since that

23

little piece of road called Kuikahi between

24

Honoapiilani and Waiale came in, I can tell you

25

there was a significant reduction on

H-Pi~ilani
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1

Kuikahi into town during those rush hour periods.

2

And as a 20-year resident who drove that road every

3

day and have kids going to that school in the past

4

and currently, I can tell you there has been -- and

5

that's only for a small piece of road.

6

start moving along, as we will with the Spencer

7

project, in getting Waiale extended out to Waiko and

8

we start getting Kuikahi down into the Maui Lani

9

project, I feel comfortable that there will be more

So once we

10

circulatory functions of our transportation system

11

available and that it will alleviate some of the

12

stress that are currently being felt by people who

13

utilize these corridors.

14

you.

15

CHAIR CARROLL:

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

Thank you.

So with that, Chair, thank

Ms. Anderson.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I'd like

to amend the main motion.

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

Proceed.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I'd like to -- I move to amend

20

Condition No.4, which reads currently that the

21

applicant shall enter into an affordable housing

22

agreement with and to the satisfaction of the

23

Department of Housing and Human Concerns.

24

to amend that motion -- that condition to state that

25

the applicant shall provide 30 percent of all lots

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS [ INC.
(808) 524-2090

I'd like

LU 3/2/05

132

1

for -- that the applicant shall provide 30 percent

2

of all lots in the affordable range according to the

3

following criteria:

4

to 80 percent of the median income, 30 percent will

5

be sold at up to 100 percent of the median income,

6

20 percent at up to 120 percent of the median

7

income, and 20 percent at up to 140 percent of the

8

median income.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
CHAIR CARROLL:

30 percent will be sold at up

Second.

Been moved by Ms. Anderson, seconded by

11

Ms. Johnson.

Discussion, Ms. Anderson.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

This

13

amendment specifies more clearly and increases the

14

number of lots in the affordable housing range.

15

uncomfortable leaving it open ended, that after the

16

fact the applicant and the Department of Housing and

17

Human Concerns will work out an agreement.

18

Council will never see it.

19

10 percent, as we were told.

20

enough.

21

dedicating County resources for more housing, we

22

need to be dedicating more of those resources to

23

people in the affordable range.

24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:

I think we need -

I'm

The

It most likely will be
I don't think that's
if we're going to be

Further discussion?

Mr. Kane.

sorry.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I yield to Member Johnson.

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Member Johnson.
I agree with the premise that we

4

need to provide at least the lot package, because

5

when I -- you know, and granted they don't have firm

6

figures, but when you're looking at let's say the

7

lot package right now and then what it would cost to

8

put a house on it, any kind of relief that we can

9

get on the land side will then enable people to put

10

up a home that is, to me, a little bit more in

11

keeping with I guess a life style that isn't just

12

putting people into shoe boxes, so I really would

13

like members to support this.

14

I think that we're trying desperately to

15

provide opportunities, and whatever we can do to

16

improve on what's already been proposed by Ms.

17

Lee -- I know many of us have supported a change in

18

the affordable housing policy.

19

a lot, I think that some of the other individuals

20

that will be moving into this subdivision, if it

21

does go forward, you know, they need to realize that

22

that is really critical to provide for those that

23

can't really qualify for a lot of the other packages

24

that are coming forward in Maui County, and with the

25

median price at 600,000 in Maui County for basically

Because this is only
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1

a house and lot package, I just think we need to do

2

all that we can.

3

shifting some of those other lots into a higher

4

category, well, then, that's just the way it is.

5

Thank you.

6

CHAIR CARROLL:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And, you know, if it means

Mr. Kane.
Thank you.

Followed by Mr. Mateo.
Thank you, Chair.

First I'll state

10

that I will not be supporting the amendment.

We

11

just approved over 400 affordables right across the

12

street.

13

lot only and provides the flexibility for people

14

when houses are more affordable during some range

15

during the economy, it's going to provide people

16

with their opportunity and the latitude to have

17

their own affordable houses.

I think that what this project offers is

I think the motion isn't well thought out,

18
19

only because if we're talking about 30 percent,

20

instead of the 10 that was talked about by Ms. Lee,

21

that 30 percent of 108 houses comes out to

22

approximately, if we're going to round it out, 33

23

houses.

24

which would be 3.3

25

houses, ten houses for the 100 percent would be

And then the break down of 80 percent,
1

6.6, so that would be ten
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another seven houses for the 120 percent and another

2

seven houses for the 140 percent.

3

quite work.

4

fix there, if it's going to be considered by the

5

body.

The numbers don't

So there needs to be a little bit more

Also, I think Member Johnson stated, and I'll

6
7

state it for the opposite reason, is that if you do

8

this, then you're actually bumping up the cost of

9

the other lots that are left and available.

You're

10

going to actually have them subsidizing inside here

11

as well on lots only.

12

doing lots in this project and not houses at this

13

point in time, is my understanding, and I think just

14

because there's lots only, that in itself provides

15

the flexibility for what kind of affordable housing

16

can go on these lots, including having the

17

flexibility of sweat equity and not being committed

18

to having the Nunokawas building the affordable

19

units.

20

Keep in mind that we're only

So for those reasons, Mr. Chair, I'm not

21

comfortable with moving forward on this amendment at

22

this time, and I appreciate Member Anderson bringing

23

this out.

24

was grabbed out of the air or if there was thought

25

as to why 30 percent.

I don't know if this was a number that

Why not 20 percent, why not
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50 percent, which was part of the discussion

2

earlier?

3

and I'm sure Member Anderson, if this doesn't pass

4

this time around, I would be willing to entertain a

5

thought at future junctures, including first and

6

second reading, Chair.

You know, I need maybe a better rationale,

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

10

Thank you.

Further discussion?
Chairman.

Mr. Mateo.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you very much.

Real

11

briefly, Member Kane just explained, you know, my

12

own sentiments and why I would not be able to

13

support the amendment.

14

that I think at this particular point I believe the

15

applicant had gone through its initial good faith

16

negotiations or initial discussions with the

17

Department -- with the Department and with Ms. Lee.

18

To make the changes at this -- at the 11th hour, so

19

to speak, for this Committee -- you know, we haven't

20

heard any comments from the applicants themselves to

21

see what their impacts of the total project could

22

be.

23

affordable housing to the max, and I would say

24

terrific, but I think at this particular point for

25

this particular project, I think I would not be able

And I think in addition to

I above anybody else, you know, support
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to support the recommended amendment.

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you, Mr. Mateo.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Mr. Molina.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I

4

definitely appreciate Member Anderson's intent.

I

5

think she kind of sums up many of our feelings here

6

towards affordable housing for all, at least as many

7

units as possible, but at this juncture I'm sure it

8

would hit the Nunokawas like a brick in the head

9

with this type of proposal.

These are good people

10

we're talking about.

11

I could use -- if this is the appropriate term, big

12

boys, you know.

13

project in that Waikapu area for 400 units, and this

14

proposal was not thought up by the Council back

15

then.

16

Nunokawas to me would seem somewhat unfair, but I

17

think a proposal like this would be good for

18

consideration and discussion as we look at

19

formulating some type of housing policy through this

20

body maybe for the future.

21

They're not the so-called, if

We just approved unanimously a

So I think at this point to put this on the

So I think in some ways it brings up food for

22

thought.

But, again, I think to apply this

23

amendment to the Nunokawas at this point I think

24

would just seem unfair, and you know, we all know

25

the face of Waikapu is changing dramatically, and
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1

then there's a need for housing at the same time.

2

We need to just stop and think and make sure we

3

address the immediate things.

4

housing is the infrastructure itself.

5

Aside from the

And the Nunokawas have proven themselves to

6

be very I guess community-minded people.

They live

7

in the community.

8

to respond to the concerns of the community, and we

9

just have to put our faith and trust in people like

I believe they're sincere enough

10

the Nunokawas.

They're not fly-by-night developers.

11

They're sincere members of the community.

12

the intent is appreciated, I cannot support the

13

amendment at this point, Mr. Chairman.

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you, Mr. Molina.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So while

Thank you.

Ms. Anderson.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

You

16

know the reason I brought this amendment forward

17

is -- and to answer some of the questions that

18

Mr. Kane brought forward, I'm sorry if the numbers

19

don't work out.

20

percent was chosen because that's what the City and

21

County of Honolulu uses as their policy, and I think

22

that we in Maui County deserve to give at least that

23

to our citizens.

24

this is because we don't get the chance until it

25

comes to us to make these kind of recommendations.

They do on my pad of paper.

30

And one of the reasons I'm doing
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And that's why I have a problem with the Department

2

of Housing and Human Services promoting a policy

3

that the Council has not adopted, because by the

4

time it comes to us, the applicant has in their mind

5

that they've only got to do 10 percent at 120 to

6

140.

That is not affordable.
During this last campaign I went out and

7

8

spoke to members of this community allover this

9

island, and every single one of them said 120 and

10

180 -- to 140 percent of the median income is not

11

affordable.

12

it sound like we're addressing affordability, but

13

we're certainly not providing an opportunity for the

14

residents who live and are the work force of Maui

15

County.

16

Mr. Chair.

17

So you can say it's affordable and make

That's the reason I proposed this,

We can talk and talk and talk, but we spent

18

the last term and not develop a housing policy.

19

We've been under a crisis for the last four years

20

about affordable housing and this Council still

21

hasn't adopted a policy.

22

this Administration and the previous Administration

23

is negotiating with developers before it ever comes

24

to the Council telling them they only need to do 10

25

percent at 120 to 140.

And the Administration

We're not doing our jobs.
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1

We're not addressing this issue on the ground where

2

it needs to be addressed.

3

forward.

That's why I brought this

And I'm sorry if it's a last-minute attempt,

4

5

but I would hope that this would be an impetus to

6

get this body to address the affordable housing

7

crisis and adopt a policy so that developers all

8

across this island know what we expect.

9

it is right now, we are letting our resources go for

Because as

10

housing that is primarily for non-residents.

11

you.

12
13
14

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank

Further discussion on the amendment to the

main motion?

Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I agree with Ms. Anderson, and I

15

think until we take a leadership role and actually

16

state what policy is, we are abdicating our

17

responsibility to the Department of Housing and

18

Human Concerns.

19

are the ones that are now creating de facto policy.

20

I think we've talked about it.

21

point.

22

arguments that were made are really against this

23

kind of proposal.

24
25

And failing everything else, they

This is a starting

I don't believe that, you know, the

I don't think it's going to add that much
more to the remaining lots.

I really don't believe
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1

that.

I think that in this particular case you

2

cannot have any developer come forward -- and

3

Ms. Lee said it herself when she spoke and said it

4

is you that sets or says what is to be conditioned r

5

not her Department.

6

should go forward with something more than just the

7

bare 10 percent.

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So I just believe that we

Thank you.

Further discussion?

Mr. Kane.

My second and final timer Mr. Chair.

10

I'll make it clear that I am voting no on this

11

amendment because I don't believe specifically

12

what's being offered is something that I feel is

13

acceptable.
However r I think in my last comment I made it

14

15

clear that I am open to something that's more than

16

the 10 percent but less than what's being required

17

of now.

18

qualities to them r and I specifically stated that on

19

this one I feel that the uniqueness of this is that

20

it's lots only and that it provides many people the

21

opportunity to come in and buy these properties and

22

do on their own time with their own resources to

23

develop what's affordable for them.

24

25

And it's because every project has unique

The Nunokawas have represented that the lots
here are going to be sold from between -- originally
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1

from 140 to 190 and it may move up to 150 to 200

2

because of the stoplight.

3

lots that are 7,500 square feet to 12,000 square

4

feet I think are fair.

5

affordable housing and people purchasing or buying

6

affordable housing as what's being referenced in the

7

context of affordable, then they shouldn't be

8

looking at a 7,500- to 12,OOO-square-foot property

9

as their starter for an affordable horne.

Now, those numbers for

If we're talking about

That's my

10

opinion.

11

great.

12

square foot lot and I suffered for it, but I got it,

13

and I paid -

14

And I'm not saying -- I mean, if they can,
I mean, I myself started with a 10,000

and it was an affordable thing for me.

Same thing, I mean, the 10 percent provides

15

the opportunity for these people.

If we're going to

16

look at 15 percent or 20 percent, I'm willing to

17

look at those as well, and I'm willing to talk to

18

the Nunokawas myself on a personal level to see if

19

they're open to that, because they're not a part of

20

this discussion, so ...

21

Finally, you know, I just find it curious

22

that Ms. Anderson does throw this number out and

23

then accuses people who don't support it of being

24

irresponsible.

25

I understand, you know, that she feels strongly, but

That I find a little bit offensive.
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1

she can't expect us to adopt a Honolulu policy that

2

had I'm sure lengthy discussion in how they arrived

3

at that.

4

discussion on policy, and it's not about

5

think it's the appropriate time or place to have a

6

discussion on policy when we're talking about

7

somebody's application specifically.

8

going to have the policy discussion, let's have it,

9

but let's not take the time of this body during an

This body has not had that opportunity for
I don't

So if we're

10

application process to have that policy discussion.

11

Thank you, Chair.

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

We have a motion on the floor.

13

All those in favor of the motion, signify by saying

14

"aye."

15

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

17

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

No.

18

VOTE: AYES:
NOES:

Councilmembers Anderson and Johnson,
Councilmembers Kane, Mateo, Molina,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and
Chair Carroll.
Councilmember Hokama.
None.
None.

19

21

EXC. :
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

22

MOTION FAILED.

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

20

24
25

ayes.

Aye.
Opposed?

We have one, two, three -- five noes, two

Motion is not --

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

There's eight of us, Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL:

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

CHAIR CARROLL:

7

10

There's eight of us.
How did you vote, Chair?

I mean
Six.

Yes, I'm sorry, six.

We're getting so

tired we can't even count already.
Okay, we have back to the main motion on the

8
9

Pardon?

floor.

Any further discussion?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Ms. Johnson.

If this is the main motion, I'm

11

I'm not at this point -- because people seem very

12

aggravated that motions are being made at this

13

point, I'm not going to make any motions, but I will

14

try to perhaps offer some amendments at the full

15

Council level.

16

I'm not going to be supporting this

17

particular application at this time.

And I'll tell

18

you why.

19

It's not because of the fact that, you know, I don't

20

believe that we should offer lots to people.

21

because of the fact that we have not done what I

22

believe we should have done early on, and that was

23

answer the questions.

It's not because it's not a good project.

It's

24

In my mind we still haven't answered

25

Mr. Foley's question about the access and the Fire
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1

Department concerns about is the road going to go

2

through, is it not going to go through.

3

answered that.

4

Fire and Police.

5

earlier that there are concerns about budget.

6

doesn't have right now an additional staffing, you

7

know, available to cover this particular area.

8

didn't get an answer yet on whether or not the water

9

certification is required.

We haven't

We haven't addressed the issue of
We heard from our Captain Fontaine
He

I

Ms. Anderson has not

10

gotten her question answered with regard to the

11

Corporation Counsel providing her with that

12

information.
We don't have an affordable housing policy in

13
14

place.

And while I know it's being stated that,

15

well, we don't want to make an issue of this, we

16

have not been making an issue of having an

17

affordable housing policy for quite some time now.

18

So maybe this is the time to do it, when people want

19

to move forward.

20

resolved as to who's going to maintain it.

21

gotten an answer.

22

the ohanas, because if ohanas are going to be

23

permitted, then the view corridor, which we already

24

know with the development that's gone in, the view

25

corridor is tremendously obstructed now.

The park issue hasn't been
Haven't

11m concerned about the issue of
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1

even see the mountains anymore.

2

by a testifier during our site inspection with

3

regard to keeping the view plane open.

4

going to permit ohanas, perhaps they should not be

5

permitted on the lots that front the highway.

6

might be one thing.

7

discussion.

8

9

And this was raised

So if you're

That

But we're not having that

We haven't gotten an answer yet about the
Waiko Road and the old government road, one that is

10

going to come forward and the circulation seems a

11

really important issue to people.

12

to know as a Council member if we abdicate our

13

responsibility, then when the subdivision comes

14

forward, we're leaving this for other people to

15

address these issues.

16

at zoning, we look at rezoning, we look at all these

17

things, that we're supposed to do our job, our due

18

diligence.

19

because once the community plan amendment is made

20

and everything is all hunky-dory, it will move on

21

and we won't have any opportunity to address the

22

concerns which will now be in the purview of the

23

Planning Commission.

24

25

I just would like

I thought that when we look

We will not see this application again,

So this is a green light, and I just don't
have those answers.

I don't feel comfortable in

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

LU 3/2/05

147

1

moving forward with this with all this stuff

2

hanging.

3

much more comfortable, because I think basically the

4

lots are needed.

5

not going to approve something and abdicate my

6

responsibility to someone else.

If I do have the answers, I would feel

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

9

But until I get those answers, I'm

Further discussion?

Thank you.
Mr. Molina.

Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Should this matter pass out of Committee today,

10

every member on this body will have the opportunity

11

to get additional information and give additional

12

comments at first reading.

13

Mr. Chairman, I'd like to call for the question.

14
15

CHAIR CARROLL:

So at this point,

We have a motion on the floor.

All those

in favor of the motion, signify by saying "aye."

16

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Aye.

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Opposed?
No.
No.

20
21
22

23
24
25
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VOTE: AYES:

2
3

4
5
6

NOES:
EXC. :
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmembers Kane, Mateo, Molina,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and
Chair Carroll.
Councilmembers Anderson and Johnson.
Councilmember Hokama.
None.
None.

MOTION CARRIED.
Recommending FIRST READING of revised
proposed bills, RECORDATION of
unilateral agreement, and FILING of
communication.

ACTION:

7

8

9
10

CHAIR CARROLL:

So it is six ayes and two noes.

motion is carried.
Members, I thank you for your extraordinary

11

12

patience and endurance.

13

Thank you very much for your efforts.

14

meeting of

15

stands adjourned.

16

The

ADJOURN:

It is almost 7:00 o'clock.
And this

- Land Use meeting of March 2nd, 2005
(Gavel) .

6: 59 p.m.

17
18
19
20
21
22

23
24
25
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3
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5

I, Jessica R. Perry, Certified Shorthand Reporter

6

7

for the State of Hawaii, hereby certify that the

8

proceedings were taken down by me in machine shorthand and

9
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10

supervision; that the foregoing represents to the best of

11
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12

proceedings had in the foregoing matter.

13
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14
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15
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